NEW MEXICO JUNIOR COLLEGE

BOARD MEETING
Friday, August 18, 2006
Zia Room - Library
1:30 p.m.

AGENDA

Welcome

B. Adoption of Agenda

C. Approval of Minutes of July 20, 2006

PN AL -

et bk ek
W= o0

15.

16.
17.

President’s Report

New Business

Consideration of Social Security

Monthly Expenditures Report

Monthly Revenue Report

Oil and Gas Revenue Report

Schedule of Investments

Consideration of Bid #986 — Athletic Team Insurance
Consideration of Request for Proposals #92 — Class Schedule
Consideration of Research and Public Service Projects
Consideration of NMESC Bylaws

Consideration of Institutional Information Technology Plan

. Consideration of Campus Village Project

Consideration of Faculty Personal and Sick Leave - Summer

. Personnel Consideration — CDL Trainer

Personnel Consideration — Financial Coordinator of
Training and Outreach Programs

Personnel Consideration — Assistant Director/Professor — Law
Enforcement Academy/Public Safety

Personnel Consideration - Groundskeeper Position

Personnel Consideration - Groundskeeper Position

F. Public Comments

G. Announcement of Next Meeting

H. Adjournment

Larry Hanna
Larry Hanna
Larry Hanna

Steve McCleery

Steve McCleery
Dan Hardin
Dan Hardin
Dan Hardin
Dan Hardin
Dan Hardin
Dan Hardin
Dan Hardin
Steve McCleery
Steve McCleery
Steve McCleery
John Gratton
Robert Rhodes

Robert Rhodes
John Gratton
Charley Carroll
Charley Carroll
Larry Hanna

Larry Hanna

Larry Hanna



NEW MEXICO JUNIOR COLLEGE
BOARD MEETING
JULY 20, 2006

MINUTES

The New Mexico Junior College Board met on Thursday, July 20, 2006, beginning at
4:00 p.m. in the Zia Room of Pannell Library. The following members were present: Mr.
Larry Hanna, Chairman; Mrs. Patricia Worrell, Secretary; Mr. Phillip Jones; Mr. John
Hice, Jr.; Mrs. Yvonne Williams; and Mr. Ron Black. Not present was Mr. Guy Kesner.

Mr, Hanna called the meeting to order and welcomed visitors and guests present: Tomlyn
Dowdy, Hobbs News Sun.

Upon a motion by Mrs. Williams, seconded by Mrs. Worrell, the agenda was
unanimously adopted, as presented.

The board minutes of June 27, 2006 should have stated that Mr. Ron Black abstained
from the vote on Caster Activity Center Basketball Court Name. Upon a motion by Mr.
Jones, seconded by Mr, Hice, the board unanimously approved the minutes of June 27,
2006, as amended.

Under President’s Report, Dr. McCleery introduced Mr. Robert Rhodes, Vice President
for Training and Outreach. Jennifer Jordon and Janice Spence reported on the recent Jim
Spence Memorial Golf Tournament. Matt McKim and Dan Kemme, with
Dekker/Perich/Sabatini, presented the construction drawings for the Training and
Outreach Center. In closing, Dr. McCleery invited anyone interested to tour the new
Student Apartment Housing following the board meeting.

Under New Business, Dan Hardin presented the June financial reports and with a motion
by Mr. Hice, seconded by Mrs. Worrell, the board unanimously approved the
expenditures for June, 2006.

Based on the earlier presentation by the architects, Dr. McCleery requested approval to
move forward with the completion of the construction drawings for the Training and
Outreach Center. Upon a motion by Mr. Jones, seconded by Mrs. Williams, the board
unanimously approved proceeding as presented.

Dr. McCleery presented a request to increase the institutional match for the employee
Supplemental Retirement Plan to 6.2%. Upon a motion by Mr. Black, seconded by Mrs.
Williams, the board unanimously approved the request.



Jeff McCool recommended Ms. Linda Hall for the Director of Del Norte Center position
at an annual salary of $32,924. Upon a motion by Mrs. Williams, seconded by Mrs.
Worrell, the board unanimously approved the employment of Ms. Hall, effective August
14, 2006.

Regina Organ recommended Ms. Suzanne Schwisow for the Writer/Videographer for
Public Relations and Marketing position at an annual salary of $27,500. Upon a motion
by Mr. Hice, seconded by Mrs. Worrell, the board unanimously approved the
employment of Ms. Schwisow, effective July 24, 2006.

Robert Rhodes recommended Ms. Peggy Gratton for the Distance Learning Instructional
Designer position at an annual salary of $41,534. Ms. Gratton is related to John Gratton.
Upon a motion by Mrs. Worrell, seconded by Mr. Jones, the board unanimously
approved the employment of Ms. Gratton, effective July 31, 2006.

Richard Morris recommended Mr. Johnny Brown, Jr. for the Professor of Physical
Education/Assistant Men’s Basketball Coach position at a nine month salary of $34,738.
Upon a motion by Mrs. Williams, seconded by Mr. Black, the board unanimously
approved the employment of Mr. Brown, effective August 9, 2006.

Mr. Morris recommended Ms. Cayla Petree for the Professor of Physical
Education/Assistant Women’s Basketball Coach position at a nine month salary of
$32,510. Upon a motion by Mrs. Worrell, seconded by Mr. Black, the board
unanimously approved the employment of Ms. Petree, effective August 9, 2006.

Mrs. Worrell moved the board go into closed session for the discussion of limited
personnel matters under the provisions of section 10-15-1-H (2) of the New Mexico
Statutes Annotated 1978. Mr. Jones seconded the motion. The roll call vote was as
follows: Mr. Jones — yes; Mrs, Worrell — yes; Mr. Black — yes; Mrs. Williams — yes; Mr.
Hice — yes; and Mr. Hanna - yes.

Upon re-convening in open meeting, Mr, Hanna stated that the matters discussed in the
closed meeting were limited only to those specified in the motion for closure.

Upon a motion by Mrs. Worrell, seconded by Mrs. Williams, the board unanimously
voted to give Dr. McCleery a one year employment contract with a salary of $124,950.

Mr. Hanna called for comments from the public. There being none, the next regular
board meeting was scheduled for August 17, 2006, beginning at 4:00 p.m.

Upon a motion by Mr. Jones, seconded by Mrs, Williams, the board meeting adjourned at
6:00 p.m.



NEW MEXICO JUNIOR COLLEGE

Office of the President

Memo
TO: New Mexico Junior College Board
FRO: Steve McCleery <o
DATE:  August 10, 2006
RE: Social Security Recommendation

Based on the current information from Bill Shoobridge, I am recommending that the
Board move forward with a vote to allow employee participation in Social Security. If
you approve moving forward with this issue, we will work with the Social Security
Administration to establish the proper steps for the initiative. If employees select the
Social Security option, they will not be allowed to participate in the matching portion
of the Supplemental Retirement Plan.

Thank you for your consideration!

5317 LOVINGTON HIGHWAY = HOBBS, NEW MEXICO 88240 « (505) 392-5018 « fax 392-2526



SHOOBRIDGE LAw FirMm, P.C.

701 NORTH GRIMES STREET (505) 3922496

HOBBS. NEW MEXICO 88240 FAX: (505) 3922497

WILLIAM G. W. SHOOBRIDGE E-MAIL: shoolaw@aol.com
August 1, 2006 EMAIL & US MAIL

Dr. Steve McCleery
New Mexico Junior College
1 Thunderbird Circle
Hobbs, New Mexico 88240

Re:  Referendum for Social Security coverage
Dear Dr. McCleery:

As you know, we have been considering a referendum at the college for social security coverage. The
Board was concerned about any withholding liabilities to the college for years predating the effective
date of coverage. The Social Security Administration wrote a letter to my office on January 6, 2006,
stating:

The Internal Revenue Service is responsible for the collection and refund of all taxes,
including the taxes due for the voluntary coverage under Section 218 of the Act. However,
it is our understanding that, for voluntary coverage under Section 218, no taxes are owed
before the effective date of coverage as shown in the modification for coverage. If you have
further questions about the collection of taxes, please contact Ms. Toni Holcomb, IRS
Specialist, at (505) 527-6900, extension 232.

I have had multiple conversations with Ms. Holcomb regarding this issue and she has repeatedly
advised me unofficially that there probably was no problem for the college concerning withholding
for years predating conversion to social security, but the IRS will not put any opinion in writing. On
July 31, 2006, you and I once again visited with Toni Holcomb. Ms. Holcomb encouraged us to
proceed with a Section 218 referendum. She said as long as every employee is covered by some kind
of retirement system the college would not have a problem. She pointed out that the college had been
audited in 2004 regarding seasonal, part time and board members being covered by a qualified
retirement plan. She said the 2004 Audit classifying employees provided protection to the college
under Section 530 of the Act. Section 530 of the Act provides businesses with relief from federal
employment tax obligations if certain requirements are met. One of the requirements is an audit, and
that the college has complied with the audit. If the college classifies workers on a reasonable basis
with substantive and reporting consistency, Section 530 protects the college with relief for federal
employment tax obligations.

Ms. Holcomb did not know whether an employee who does not elect coverage may later join the
social security system at the college. She said new employees would mandatorily be covered by
social security once the social security system was adopted under a divided system. However, the
Social Security Administration stated:



We understand that the New Mexico Junior College is interested in holding a divided
vote referendum. Under the divided vote referendum, the retirement system group
is divided into two parts, each of which is deemed a separate retirement system. One
part of the retirement system includes the positions of members of the system who
elect coverage. The other part of the retirement system includes positions of members
who do not elect coverage. These are known as the “yes” and “no” groups.

Once the retirement system is divided, a referendum for Social Security coverage is
held with the yes group. The State decides the span of time over which the
referendum will be held. For example, the State may allow one day, several days, or
several weeks for the voting period. After the voting period is closed by the State,
an individual may not change his/her vote from yes to no. However, an individual
who initially voted no may change his/her vote and have his/her position transferred
to the yes group, if the State elects to extend such an opportunity. This is known as
the transfer or second chance procedure. Ifthe State allows one individual to transfer
his/her vote, the State must make this option available to all similarly situated
employees.

Under the transfer procedure, an individual must send a written request to the State
asking to change his/her vote from no to yes for Social Security coverage prior to the
execution date of the modification providing such coverage. The execution date is
the date the modification is signed by the Social Security Administration. It is not the
same date as the effective date, which determines when coverage begins. The State
may set a limited time period for accepting such requests. This closing date may be
any time prior to the execution date of the modification. The modification resulting
from the transferees must be mailed or delivered to the Social Security State chooses
to extend this opportunity, it must be made available to all similarly situated
employees. Under these procedures, an individual must file a written request with the
State prior to the date the modification is executed by the Social Security
Administration. The original effective date of coverage would apply to the members
covered under this procedure. This is known as a transfer procedure. The State
would then within two years submit another modification for coverage for the
individuals who have elected to change their vote.

After the two-year limit, another referendum of eligible members of the retirement
system would be necessary. This later referendum must be a majority vote
referendum.

Should you have further questions, please let me know.

CCl

Larry Hanna, Esq.
NMIC Board Chair



NEW MEXICO JUNIOR COLLEGE

Vice President for Finance

A
To: New Mexico Junior College Board Members
From: Dan Hardin

Date: August 9, 2006

RE: Expenditure and Revenue Reports for July

July is the first month of the 2006/2007 fiscal year. The total expended for the month of
July was $1,424,457.00. The expenditures will increase in August as the fall classes
begin, faculty return to campus and we begin posting encumbrances. Instruction
expenditures include the salaries for the summer classes, and the accruals for two
payrolls from 2005/2006. We pay the faculty on a nine month contract, but pay it out
over a 12 month period. There are two payrolls in July and one in August that we
expense in the prior fiscal year. We have not reversed the accrual for July for the
faculty payroll. In August you will see reversal of the two payrolls in July for faculty.

In the restricted funds we have estimated the budget numbers for the Grants, but there
will be some changes during the year as most Grants end their fiscal year in September
or October. When the new budgets are installed we will change the budget amount.
The expenditure for restricted financial aid will increase tremendously in August as we
anticipate about 2,000,000.00 in Pell grants and Direct loans being processed in July,

August, and September.

The Revenue generated in July 2006 was $1,117,753.00. This mostly consists of
tuition and fees, the allocation from the state, oil and gas accrual income, and auxiliary
enterprises revenue. The monthly oil and gas budget of $317,375.00 was used as the
accrual for July 2006. Normally we receive the June Oil and Gas allotment in July, but
the state has changed software and we did not receive any Oil and Gas revenue in
July. We will probably have two checks in August, the June check will be posted in
2005/2006 and the July check will go into 2006/2007.

The investment report shows an ending balance of $8,125,000.00. We did not have
any activity in July.

Business Office personnel have been working diligently to get the 05/06 fiscal year end
closed and prepare for the upcoming audit. The auditors came on campus July 31*
and will be here through most of August.

This is the Financial Report for July 2006.



NEW MEXICO JUNIOR COLLEGE
Expenditure Report

July 2006
8% of Year Completed
2005-06 2006-07
Year-to-Date Percentage Current Year-to-date Percentage
Final Expended or of Budget Expendedor Expendedor of Budget
Fund Budget Encumbered  Expended Budget Encumbered  Encumbered Expended
CURRENT UNRESTRICTED FUND
Instruction and General;
Instruction 5,788,333 514,809 9% 6,157,618 610,422 610,422 10%
Academic Support 1,510,023 105,605 7% 2,070,058 114,301 114,301 6%
Student Services 1,022,330 80,031 8% 1,259,264 116,072 116,072 9%
Institutional Support 4,496,105 200,120 % 5,157,314 182,742 182,742 4%
Operation & Maintenance of Plant 2,048,382 113,307 6% 2,305,767 135,678 135,678 6%
Subtotal - Instruction & General 14,865,173 1,013,872 7% 16,950,021 1,159,215 1,159,215 7%
Student Activities 166,929 10,059 6% 172,716 11,545 11,545 7%
Research ] 0 0% 0 0 [} 0%
Public Service 0 0 0% 0 0 0 0%
Internal Service Departments 972,829 114,593 12% 296,785 2,580 2,580 1%
Student Atd 352,934 17,112 5% 425,202 21,927 21,927 5%
Auxillary Enterprises 1,571,031 19,289 1% 1,587,623 22,851 22,851 1%
Athletics 695,644 9,706 1% 700,681 15,465 15,465 2%
Total Current Unrestricted Fund 18,624,540 1,184,631 6% 20,133,028 1,233,583 1,233,583 6%
CURRENT RESYRICTED FUND
Grants 1,938,268 72,104 4% 1,438,620 184,670 184,670 13%
Student Ald 4,694,393 25,824 1% 4,000,000 6,204 6,204 0%
Total Current Restricted Fund 6,632,661 97,928 1% 5,438,620 190,874 190,874 4%
PLANT FUNDS
Capital Outlay / Bldg. Renewal & Repl.
Projects from Institutional Funds 5,510,484 97,919 2% 7,227,157 0 [} 0%
Projects from State GOS Funds 3,426,130 2,404 0% 3,420,676 0 0%
Projects from State STB Funds 0 0 0% o 0 0 0%
Projects from Generat Fund 0 0 0% o 0 0 0%
Projects from Private Funds 1,350,000 o 0% 774,037 0 0%
Projects from State ER&R 456,042 0 0% 404,211 0 0 0%
Projects from State BR&R 374,208 11,863 3% 770,694 0 0 0%
Projects from Auxiliary BR&R 25,555 0 0% 19,147 0 (] 0%
Subtotal - Capital and BR&R 11,142,419 112,186 1% 12,615,922 1] 0 D%
Debt Service
Revenue Bonds 0 0 0% 0 0 0 0%
Total Plant Funds 11,142,419 112,186 1% 12,615,922 0 0 0%
GRAND TOTAL EXPENDITURES 36,399,620 1,394,745 4% 38,187,570 1,424,457 1,424,457 4%




NEW MEXICO JUNIOR COLLEGE
Revenue Report

July 2006
8% of Year Completed
2005-06 2006-07
Percentage Percentage
Final Year-to-date  of Budget Corrent Year-to-date of Budget
Fund Budget Revenua Received Budget Revenue Revenue Received
CURRENT UNRESTRICTED FUND
Instruction and General:
Tuition and Fees 2,384,485 46,212 2% 2,647,425 27,760 27,760 1%
State Appropriations 7,553,000 589,542 8% 8,093,209 659,552 659,552 8%
Advalorem Taxes - Oil and Gas 4,165,200 309,728 7% 4,700,000 317,375 317,375 7%
Advalorem Taxes - Property 2,588,000 [+ 0% 2,800,000 42,675 42,675 2%
Interest Income 120,000 0 0% 185,000 [} 0 0%
Other Revenues 250,050 18,227 7% 225,050 20,840 20,840 9%
Subtotal - Instruction & General 17,060,735 963,709 6% 18,650,634 1,068,202 1,068,202 6%
Student Activities 120,000 1,748 1% 110,000 0 0 0%
Public Service 0 0 0% 0 0 0 0%
Intemal Service Departments 14,000 4] 0% 0 1] [} 0%
Auxilfary Enterprises 1,922,200 300,387 16% 2,250,052 46,326 46,326 2%
Athletics 39,600 2,991 8% 39,100 3,225 3,225 8%
Total Current Unrestricted 19,156,535 1,268,835 7% 21,049,836 1,117,753 1,117,753 5%
CURRENT RESTRICTED FUND
Grants 1,938,268 [} 0% 1,438,620 1] 0 0%
Student Aid 4,694,393 [ 0% 4,000,000 [£] 0 0%
Total Current Restricted 6,632,661 [ 0% 5,438,620 0 [+ 0%
PLANT FUNDS
Capital Qutlay / Bldg. Renewal & Repl.
Projects from State GOB Funds 3,426,130 [1] 0% 3,420,676 ] 0 0%
Projects from State STB Funds 0 [} 0% 0 0 o 0%
Projects from General Fund 0 [ 0% ] 0 0 0%
Profects from Private Funds 1,350,000 0 0% 0 0 0 0%
Interast Income ] 0 0% 0 0 0 0%
Total Plant Funds 4,776,130 0 0% 3,420,676 o [} 0%
GRAND TOTAL REVENUES 30,565,326 1,268,835 4% 29,909,132 1,117,753 1,117,753 4%




NEW MEXICO JUNIOR COLLEGE
Oil and Gas Revenue Report

July 2006
8% of Year Completed
OIL GAS COMBINED
2006-07 Variance
Month of Price Lea County Price Lea County Monthly Original Over (Under)
Sales Distribution per BBL BBLs sold | per MCF MCF sold Revenue Budget Buqiet
Accrual July 316,667 316,667 0
Accrual August 0
Accrual September ] 0
Accrual October ] 0
Accrual November l 0
Accrual December 0
}Accrual January 0|
Accrual February 0 |
Accrual March 0
| Accrual April 0
Accrual May 0
Accrual June 0
Y.T.D. Production Tax Revenue 316,667 316,667 0
Y.T.D. Equipment Tax Revenue 0 0 0
Total Year-to-Date Oll & Gas and Equipment Tax Revenue 316,667 316,667 0

Source: New Mexico Taxation and Revenue Department

Per Johnson, Miller & Co., C.P.A.'s, an accrual is made for oil and gas revenue for the reporting
month.



NEW MEXICO JUNIOR COLLEGE

Schedule of Investments
July 2006
8% of Year Completed
Perlod of
Amount Maturity Investment Atcount Interest Interest
Financial Institution Invested Date {Days) Number Rate Earned
State of New Mexico
Local Govamment Investment Pool 8,125,000 NfA N/A 7102-1348 4.84% 33,779
Total Investments 8,125,000 33779
Summary of Current Month's Activity Capital Projects 7/31/2006
Technology Upgrade 376,681.13
Beginning amount 8,125,000 Workforce Training Center 1,128,790.62
High Tech Start Up 163,346.40
Plus: deposits 0 Vehicles 50,820.49
Drawings & Master Plan 1,331.85
Basebali Field 175,684.22
Less: withdrawals [+) Rodeo Arena 7.836.78
Dormitory Landscape 26,597.22
Miiten Fence/Landscape 122,075.97
Capital Projects 7,124,219 Ben Alexander Student Center 114,801.48
JAST 171,282.71
Resarves Invested 1,000,781 Computer Equipment Rebates 6,677.17
Marketing 58,986.84
Total LGIP Investment 8,125,000 Waest Texas ITV 50,000.00
Equestrian Center 150,000.00
Telephone System 0.00
Student Housing Construction 2,500,000.00
Classroom Furniture Replacement 21.00
Vedeo Security Camera Replacmt 70,000.00
Testing Center 250,000.00
Campus Village Development Proj 4,285.00
Landscaping 50,000.00
Fadility Painting 50,000.00
Smart Classrooms 50,000.00
Millen Drive Signalization 95,000.00
Electrical Upgrade 605,000.00
Campus Signage 50,000.00
Campus Paving 60,000.00
Video Security-Student Apts 75,000.00
Roof Replacement 300,000.00
Interior Lighting-Energy Retrofit 100,000.00
Bookstore POS Systerm 60,000.00
Old Dorms Renovation 200,000.00
Total 7,124,218.88

NOTE: Capital projects total doss not include sncumbered funds



NEW MEXICO JUNIOR COLLEGE

Invitation To Bid #986

Athletic Team Insurance

BOARD DOCUMENTS
Date: August 18, 2006
Prepared by: Joshua Morgan

Coordinator of Purchasing




NEW MEXICO JUNIOR COLLEGE
BOARD DOCUMENTS
General Information
On July 19, 2006, a legal notice was sent to the following newspapers requesting sealed
bids for NMJC Athletic Team Insurance, covering time period, August 1, 2006 through
August 1, 2007.

1) The Hobbs Daily News Sun
2) Las Cruces Sun News

Proposal packets were delivered to sixteen (16) potential bidders.

One vendor submitted a proposal within the time frame specified by the proposal
package. This vendor also attended the bid opening.

The Business Office and the Athletic Department have evaluated the bids received and
their recommendations are shown on Page 2.

Page 1




NEW MEXICO JUNIOR COLLEGE

Evaluation and Recommendations

Board Documents
One vendor, Daniels Insurance, responded to Invitation to Bid #986.
The response to the Invitation is shown on Pages 3 & 4.
The Administration recommends acceptance of the bid submitted by Daniels Insurance, Hobbs,
NM with an annual premium of $25,425 for Basic Medical Coverage and Catastrophic Medical.
The cost breakdown is shown on Page 3.

Source of Funding: 2006/2007 Fiscal Year - Athletics/Administration

Account #: 12105-3121-71204-211 - Athletic Insurance Premium
Amount: $25,425

Page 2




NEW MEXICO JUNIOR COLLEGE
Invitation to Bid #986

Athletic Teams Insurance
Daniels Insurance proposes to provide to NMJC services as specified below:

» Policy Period will be for one year as follows —
o Basic Medical — August 1, 2006 through August 1, 2007
o Catastrophic Medical — August 1, 2006 through August 1, 2007
o NMIC reserves the right to renew coverage for up to three additional years, one
year at a time.

¢ Activities to be covered:

Mens’ Basketball

Womens’ Basketball

Baseball

Golf

Cheerleaders

Managers and Trainers

Rodeo (Catastrophic only)

Women’s Cross Country & Indoor/Outdoor Track & Field

OO0 O0COCO0CO0

» Basic Medical Annual Premium of $19,272 with $1,000 deductible.
e Catastrophic Medical Premium of $6,153 with $5,000,000 medical maximum.
¢ Daniels Insurance current A. M. Best Rating of A++ XV on Basic Medical.
e Current A.M. Best Rating of A VIII on Catastrophic Medical
» COVERAGE(S)
BASIC MEDICAL
Activities to include play, practice and conditioning and includes:
(a) 2 year benefit period
(b) Expanded Medical Benefits for conditions not normally covered such as
tendonitis, bursitis, stress fractures, etc.

(c) Pre-existing condition coverage
(d) HMO/PPO denial benefits

Page 3




AD&D Principal Sum e g e on o $ 10,000

Accidental Medical Expense.... $ 25,000

Maximurn Dental Limit ........................................................................................... . $ 25’000

Integrated Deductible AMOuUnt i $ 1,000

e CATASTROPHIC

Maximum Medical, Dental, and Rehabilitation ......- $5,000,000
Lifetime Benefit Period
$25,000 Deductible

A&K&D Benefit oo $10,000,000

Principal sum

Disability Benefit (lifetime):

Partial Disability o e $ 1,000/month
4% annual increase

Total Disability ............................................................................................................... $ l,soofmonth
4% annual increase

Miscellaneous EXpense ... oo $ 300/month

Adjustment Expense Benefit $ 40,000

Special Expense Benefit $ 125,000 max

(first 10 years)

$ 50,000 max
(subsequent)

Anci]lal_'x illness or ini“ﬂ 175 1 1=) i | e : $ 100,000
(maximum lifetime)
$ 5,000 deductible

Page 4




ITB #986 — Athletic Teams Insurance

Receipt of Sole Bid

The bid opening for Invitation to Bid # 986 was scheduled for 3:00 p.m., Thursday, August 10, 2006.
One bid, Daniels Insurance, was received.

Legal notices appeared in the Hobbs News Sun on July 25" and the Las Cruces Sun-News on July
21, giving bidders a minimum of 16 days in which to reply.

Bid packages were mailed to 16 perspective bidders on July 19",
All legal obligations have been met with the intent to find the best value for New Mexico Junior
College. It is my determination that NMJC has followed all procurement procedures properly and

the bid from Daniels Insurance should be accepted.

Joshua Morgan
Purchasing Coordinator

Page 5




NEW MEXICO JUNIOR COLLEGE

REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS #92

Printing of New Mexico Junior College Class Schedule and
Preparation of Mailing List, Labeling, and Mailing of New Mexico
Junior College Class Schedule

BOARD DOCUMENTS
Date: August 18, 2006
Prepared by: Joshua Morgan

Coordinator of Purchasing




NEW MEXICO JUNIOR COLLEGE
BOARD DOCUMENTS
General Information
On July 7, 2006, a legal notice was sent to the following newspapers requesting sealed
proposals to provide professional services for preparation of mailing list, labeling, and

mailing of NMJC class schedules.

1) The Hobbs Daily News Sun
2) Las Cruces Sun News

Proposal packets were delivered to fifteen vendors.
Two (2) vendors submitted proposals in compliance with the opening date and time.
No bidders were present at the opening.

Business Office and Public Relations personnel have evaluated the proposals received
and their recommendation is shown on Page 2.

Page 1




NEW MEXICO JUNIOR COLLEGE

Evaluation and Recommendations

Board Documents

The following vendors responded to the Request for Proposals #92.

Diversified Printers Oakcreek Printing
La Mirada, CA Lincoln, NE

Of the 2 proposals received, only Oakcreek Printing met all specified criteria. Diversified
Printers did not submit samples of work as requested in the Request for Proposal. In addition,
Diversified Printers did not provide references as required.

Oakcreek Printing’s proposal was evaluated by a selection committee, comprised of Vicki
Vardeman, Director of Public Relations/Marketing; Kathy Mahan, Desktop Designer; and Judy
Halladay, Department Secretary — Public Relations/Marketing using evaluation criteria specified
in the RFP.

The Administration recommends acceptance of the services of Oakcreek Printing. The term of
the contract will be one year with an option to renew for up to two additional years. Pricing may
be affected in years 2 and 3 by increases in U. S. Postal rates, and increases in paper and labor
prices; however, Oakcreek Printing will maintain their current margins, and only those costs
directly affecting production and delivery will be passed on to NMJC.

Source of Funding: Advertising/Publicity $20,620 (annual)
Account Number: 11810-3071-71102-181




Request for Proposal #92

Board Documents

Evaluation and Recommendation

Proposal Evaluation Criteria:

Section Number

Section Title

Percent

Total Points

I

Provide information
as to how often
mailing list is
updated, date of last
update, and criteria
used in developing
mailing list.

10%

10

Provide list of other
colleges and
institutions with
contact person and
phone number.

5%

Ability to meet
summer, 2007
deadline.

15%

15

Price

70%

70

Total

100%

100




‘Bunuild }9949)}E0 SPUSWILIOIDI 99)}ILILLIOD LORIBOS BY |

SME}S 30U [BIIUSPISSY JO) UDIIBISPISUOD %G JO SAISN|IUI 92l ,

001 0L Gl ] ol 3831 HeQ
3Jom jo ajdwes ou - peigijenbsiq  Siajuld payISIaaIq
0oL %0L %S| %S %01
IviOoL sauj|peaq sJaquInN auoyd pue eLI2)LID) UOHIVOS ‘sajepdn
aoud Jeo N 03 Aty JORIUOYD YNM SIDUDIDJOY 1517 Buijiey jo uoneiedary

$3INpayas ssejd OriiN Jo Bulrely pue ‘Bunuud ‘Bulaqe 9siq Bulilew jo uonesedaid
€6 # ddy - jJesyg uonenqe ]



NEW MEXICO JUNIOR COLLEGE

Office of the President

Memo
TO: New Mexico Junior College Board
FRO: Steve McCleery &S/
DATE:  August 10, 2006
RE: Research and Public Service Projects

Enclosed is a copy of the Research and Public Service Projects (RPSP) which must be
submitted to the Higher Education Department. It is my recommendation that you
approve the RPSP submittal.

Thank you for your consideration!

5317 LOVINGTON HIGHWAY +HOBBS, NEW MEXICO 88240+ (505) 392-5018 efax 392-2526



$00Z ‘Z) IsnBny

abBueyn oN wetboig Bunsixz jo vojsuedxg™ X weiBoig meN :9uQ Roey)

INIJNLAVHIA NOLLYINAT HIHOIH
OJIX3IW M3N

wnasniy 26ejuay wieysapy weiBoug
oba|jo) JouNf 021X MEN UOIINISU)

8002-100Z se3A |BOSid

1S3NOD3Y NOILVIMdO¥NddY

AWNISNIN 3OVLIRITGH NY31LSIM




| abegq

“(v) sonaiy

J0 '(8) Lioymerg ‘(Sd) edtaies 211and ‘() Yoseesay seyya se woy) Ajuep! eseald ‘sioefosd meu 104 “UORNISUL BY) O} wenodwy s) ingq
simels Aq pasnbed Jou s1 1oafoud (g) 10 ‘uojssiw fpUORNINSU 03 [BRUASSS S) ING BINJEYS g pasinbal Jou 51 wsfoud {2) ‘aymes Aq

pausinbe. 51 308foud (1) :uoneuuoju) Bulmo(jo) oy} ajesipul 03 aweu 198f0ud ay) Joye siaqunu Bulppe Aq sjoefosd eznuoud Jaypn) esea|d,

: T SIEPUOISIA®Y T "ON UOISIASY UOCISIASI € SI LLLIO) St # sy
$}502 Bunesado 10y (sd} (2) wnasnyy
00°000'061% Buipjing j00j a1enbs p16°9E € jo uopelduwio) abejus wiajsam }
314 1.LPPY seamyipusdxgy eBueys werboig (Buns)x3z 1o map) Nuey
pejsenbey « BUIBN J00f0.d
G00Z ‘2l 3snbny pJeog Buiussaonisjuaboy #b9)]09 Jolunp O2IX3W MaN uonmIIsu|
J0 pleog Aq peacaddy ajeq
8002-12002 Jed ) |eosiy

sjsanbay joafoid meN pue abueys weisboid Jo Aiewwng



Z abeg "}IOM J& UODEM YonyD BuluogouNny

‘leas e a8s 0} wayy smojje pue ‘Awiwnp Guidos e osse| pue ados e Bums 0} 20UBYD B SPIY SaAID ‘SSaUGIEME Brup Joj swesbosd saimes) dnpunoy suielq

paxelg ay; ‘vopippe uj “sbop mod Buppom pue sjewiue YoUES pue wiej Jo ABLEA B SAISSQO OS|e Ualpiyd asay | "Buidos 30U pue ‘yapung Buiwnyd ‘Buyew

unb ‘Buprew sjppes ‘Bunjew Jooq ‘Bureoysasioy SB yINS SIS PUB SIUSAS WBISIAL PuBy-1sJy Ssaupm 0) Ayunpoddo sy yim way) Bupiaosd ‘uasppud jooyos

Iie 0} 8|qejiese s1 soualiadxa jeuoneonpa siy] "dnpunoy suleld pexels ay) paonpoid Sey ‘SIasjun|oA 0 djey ey ypm ‘wnasnpyy ebejus ureysop sy) ‘sieak Z)
1sed 2y} Joj Jeah yoe3 ‘uoibas Buipunouns ay) pue AQunoy Ba 4o LINOA Bl §0 Js0W Joj a3usLadxe [euoheanpa aNbiUN & S18Yo wnasniy abejus ualsam ay L

"abpajmouy pue a9UsLISdXa INO JO SESIB UIEUSD O} PPE O} 241SSp |8 oM pue $58904d Buojay e st Buiwies yey) Jepisucd o} osje jnq

‘uaIppyo Ajleoadse ‘912aNpa 0} 1JESID S} WNSSNW AU} JO UOISSIW By ‘sucnez|uebio J0 Qeuea e Bunuasasdal sienpiaipur Auew woy Jndul uo paseq *a}eanpa 0}

S1JIQIYX8 pUe ‘JUAWNICP JO8[|00 BM UOSES) BY] 'SIUOJSIY |BINJEL PUR [BINYND JNO J0j 10adsas pue ul Jsaleiul syemadiad pue ‘yuesaid ‘aasesasd ‘aunooud *ansind

0) Aqisuodsal e sf 813y} JYIYUM "00IXSPY MBN LISESYINOS JO SSUOJSIY [EIMBU pUR [eJnyno 8y} 0} PAJBIAI S8oUBLISdX [BUOHEDNDD DANIEISIU 10} ._mﬁmmOL
ajdoad Buug sjuane |e1MND pue seniARoe BUILES| SNOJBLUNU SIBUM J8JUSD S2IN0SSI [euondUNYNW B SB Paleald ussq Sey wnasnpy sbejuaH wajsap meu sy

"$1500 |euofielado pajoalod ay; JO 00°000'061¢$ apinoid o) sle)s auy; Bunse s| abejjo) sounr ooixep meN
"BaJe INo 0] spqiyxe Bujisaes Buibuliq 10 pUB ‘UE JO SHIOM DUE SHQILXE JO
aoueudjUleW puE uogeAIasald B 10} [ERUBSSS S| YIJYM JUSWILIOIIAUS PII0ALOO B Sauinbes wnasnw ay) eouls 100y asenbs Jad 29°0L$®
psjewnsa ale sisoo Bunesado “wnesny abejsoH wa)sap oy 1o sasuadxs Bunesado oy Ajenuue 00°000'061$ Bunssnbay ase app “wnasny abejdoH
waisepn ays Jo 51500 Buneredo [enuue 00'089'6Ec$ paloslond sy Aeyep diay o} s1 spuny Joaloid B0IMBS MqN pue Yoleassy Joj }sanbal siyy
1800 LO)ONASU0o 10j pasn aq o} spung [euolmgsul Jo 00°000'Gi ' 1§ paledoyje sey pieog 8681100 Jojunp coxaly MeN syt ‘aimeisiBa y00T
a1 Aq pung jesauas) 8y woy 00 00S'SG9$ PRIEOOIIE SEem 969)10D JoIUNP OJIXBY MBN "S)S0D uononSUCY 40} 00°000'65E’ L $ pabpald sey Jouop snowAuoue ue
‘Spuny sje)s ssaly 0] UORIPPE U "S}SOD UORINASUCD JOj paAcidde Sem SPUCE XB| SOUBIBASS Ul 00°000'000'Z$ leuonippe ue ‘uoissas aAne;siBal Zo0oz sy} Buunp
‘Uay ] "S)S02 UORONNSUCD pue sBuMEIP [RINDBYYOIE JO) SPUCY UCKEBIGO [BIBUSS) Woy 00°000'000°L$ pencudde ayers sy) ‘000 Ul "SBUIMEIP UORONRSUOD
uibaq 0) GOO 81e}s Wy papIeme Sem 00°000'00F$ ‘6661 U} “Io1esy) jeas-p| e PuE ‘swed Jo leH Aogmod Aunoy) ea ey} osie Jng
wnasnuw sy} Aluo Jou sesnoy wnoasnpy abeludH WSISSM BU). "00°000°000°SS Alejewixoidde Bugsoo ‘yeay asenbs ppe'az sey Buippng mou ay)
"uoiBas sy Ui SUCAIDAS JO SAAY BY) YOUUS [iM JBY) S8oUBLISMXS [EUOREINDPS PUE [BINYND Buiobuo apiaosd osie |m wnasnpyy ebejusy welsep ey
"9AI8S SM SIENPIAIPUI PUB SBRIUNLULICD 3U 10j 3] JO Ayenb auy soueyus 0} pue $a21Mas Woddns pue diysieiu g weiboud jeuoneanpe Jo suws) Ul uoyeINpa
Anjenb apiacud o} st yoym ‘sbisijog Jowng ooxaly MSN JO uoissiw sy st wnasniy abejual wiaisap syl puiysq uoisia ay) senunpoddo reuonecnps puedxs pue ‘wnasnw
sse00e §,0IIqnd 3y} Bupueyus ‘soeds Jooy alow Ajlenueisgns Bupircsd 'sndwes PN 3Y) Uo wnasnyy abejusH uIRISAA Meu du UO PaJaIdwod USDQ SBY UONONIISUDY

“spqiyxe Aiajjeb 10) pajedojie sem aoeds 40 3994 asenbs 00| [RUORIPPE UB 066 U *9B8107) 0N 021X MBN JO Sndwed ayy uo Jsjua?r)
Auaoy Jeyse ay) Jo uonsod Jooj-a1enbs-000's € Ui pauado wnesnyy abeluaH WaISSAA 3Y) 2961 Ul ‘8161 ul paziuebio sem wnasnpy sbejuay wosep sy
apmalels (¢pajepuew Ajjesopay il S| ;opimelels §l si) adoog pue uoissi/uondusseq weloid|

:(190foud S|y} Jo sausysixa ayy BuiApepun ‘Aue ) Ajuoyiny Auoime)s
abe||0D) JOJUNP ODIXB MEN UORN}ISU| wnesny abejioH weisep 10efold
8002 - L00T 1ed) |edstd
MaJAIBAQ Joeloid

L 1qIyx3




¢ abeyd

alep uoISINGY "ON UOISINGY “UOISIARI B S| WO SIgL ) ey

"SIONSIA 000'9 JOAO PSISOY WNASNY 8y} pue 'sbunaew 1o} LINJsN}y abEILOH LISISSM SY) 0} BWIED SUOREZILEDIO pUE SANQIB JUBJSHIP 8F J8AD 9002-5002 Y

89191 Jo sway Auew pue assydsouwne anbjun sy} Jo esneseq suoneziuebio pue sdnoib jjlews 1oj soeid Bunoow djuOAR) € S} wnasny abejuay usisap aty L

"Shdwed uo UORDNIISUCY O} ANp PaSIUED SEM 9002/500Z 40j dNpunol sulejd peyelS ayj "AQunosn) esT ul seys [ESUOISIY pue $aajonpul
MaU 82)ufi00a1 0) SOAIBS JUSASD SIY). "SISQLIBW (S UBLY SI0W S} Joj Janbueq pue Bunssw |enuue ue s}soy wnasny abejuey waisaps ayy ‘Ajeurg

"03p0y pue Jeq Aunon

ea7 ay} Je siesuolid AunoD ee Jo uoubooal ayy ul [EJuaLINISUl S| WNBsniy ebejusH Wa)sop SU) 1e Yejs oy wnasnhpy sbeyusH we)sepp aup Jo sjusjuod auyy
Jo Buidwes ayy 29s |Im JSOW pue 'siojejoads Jo spueshou; SMEIP JuaABa SIU| “Je4 AJunog B3 8y JB Yi00q B SI0sucds wnasnyy abejusy Wa)sapa au ‘s
‘uopesado |euuou sy o} uonppe ul ‘sjosfosd Jofew oMy peISOyY WSNSNW abejual Walsap 8yl 9002-S00Z VI

900Z - S00Z Ul sjuewys)dwosdy joefoid

"UBDIUYIS) wnssnw e Joj diysisuyBuiuien [euonesnps ue spinosd o) 7y
"Jsenbas uodn ‘9|geUOSEa) SI SB UOHEBWLIOJUI PUB SUOHEjuasald
[eroads ‘suQIUXs ‘S[eusiel YoIBssal 'SUoHo9)j00 0] SSP00B UM ‘S|ENPIAIDU SE ||oMm Se ‘sannua Jaylo pue ‘suoneziuello ‘sjooyos signd spiaoid o) of
"SLUNJSN JO UOHEIDOSSY
ueouswy ey woy uonelpasode Buurejuiew pue Gunaiyoe Aq suonesedo pue swesbosd ul aousyjeoxs o} wnasnp sbejuay wasap ay oo o)
"eale ay) ul wisunoy Burdojaaap u; senus OO ISISSE 0} pue ajedioiued o)
"BuiwwresBoid [eJnNd pue ‘UoREINP? ‘SUOHDBJI0D ‘SUQIYXS yBnosy sbuuayo oygnd swnesnyy ebejual waysep sy aseasnu Apuesiyubls o) -
"O0IXaN MeN wWwejseaynog pue Aunod ea Jo A0Sy aunue sy) apnjau) o} Bueanpa pue Bunos||0o jo adoos swnasniy abejusH Ws)sep ay) suyapes o
‘ucneJsado pue Buiuueid wisl-Buoc| o} wnasnp sbeol Walsaps B8U) JHUWOD 0]
:sjeox) joeford

— O o o S

£

“068]]0D JOJUN[ OOIXe MEN UORMISU] winesnjy ebEJNSH Welsepn 9elolg
800¢ - 100¢ Jes A [edsiq
PaNUIUOD - MAIAIBAQ Joalouad
I ¥qiyx3



v obed

BIEP UOISINTY

[ON UOISIASY UOISIASI B S1 uLI0j SIUt )t LSl e]

SSBION

0B9'6ES

089'6€5

009°251 00'67L'96}

SIQEIIEAY (€10

YSED-LUON,

used,
eauereg pung busuibeq

0B9'665

089'6ES

009'26)

|E1QNS|

SNIEID) 7 SIORIU0D) |EIBpas,

uonendouddy [esepag,

spung feispa|

(puny wsusuLed ‘puey
‘Juswmopuy ‘uoneudauddy (230 sapnjoun)
8410,

erusARY 1502 DaIpal,

FeAId JO (8307 eIS)
Speuo) g sues,

000'0€

000°0E

6vL'9

Sopues 7 Sores,

089'6E

089°61LE

SpUNZ 81BALZNEI0TRIES JOYIO

000'06

000'061

009'4S) 000'064

uoRendolddy eImg/punJ eseuss)

oz DT
15301

ClTETS)
paowmsasuny
15enbey Bo0Z-2002

aseg

peDImsAIN
sseg al fpy

L00Z-900Z tefipng "do

PANASOY | peRNASAILN papmsay PeRingAIN

90025002 Sieny

)

2

q

oBejjoD jojunp od|xely MaN uopnysu|

800Z - 200Z Jea ) (eds|d
Aewwng anusasy

Zquyxg

wnesny oBejueH woisep deleiy



¢ abed

312D UOISIASY - ‘ON UOISIAOY "LOISIASS B S| UWLIC) SH) Jf H08UD
089'6ES | 801’212 [ Zi5'2EE 245'2ee 010’882 saumipuadx] elogng
- hi o)
8¢8'0ZE [ SoL'¥BL | £89'CYL £89'CrL £21'8EL SIS0 JaUI0) €10
- - - - 008'LE wawdinbg
000'S 00s’) 00S°E 005'€ £06'L [PABIL
seg'ee [ Z0l'L £g1'68 £81'cg S80'GS sasuadx3 pue senddng
£96'vEC | £96'08)1 | 000°vS 000'vS 58l'ey {2ouBUBUIEL B SSNIRN) S1S0T) JOYIO)
610'06 ZrL'eT 21/8'92 218'92 £62'SZ Sjuslag abul] 2oL
260'p 260'% BUYI0
S UOMINL JO JBATEM
- -dwio) yawioidwsaun
S vE uopesuadwor ,sI9NI0M
Li8'1e 000'0L 219'LL £28')) £52'01 FoUBMISU| GNOJD)
- RPNosg [enos
0S0'vZ | 050'6 000'S) 000'SL 90S'vL Blwamey
- syyauag sbul|
£18'29L | Log's ZL0'ES) ZLO'ES) 05S'veL SolB[ES [2)0
- SeLE[ES JBUIO
- SaUBBg APNYS YUOM 91818
Z salejeg uspns
- SOUBIES VIV
000°Gt 000'SH 000'SP ivE'ee SolEES Yeis voddng
eL8'ZLlL | 108'6 Z10'sol Z10'80L £0Z'96 SalJe|eg [BUOISS0.1d
seLeeg Anoey
SeUE[eS
popUISaILn | abuey) aseg pepusan|  paomsoy pepusan|  parwsay peImsaIln
10y paRMsaIUN eseg o) fpy saumypuadxy
1senbay gOOZ-2002 L00Z-900Z 126png "do 9002-5002 silenoy
) p 9 q )

aBa)j02) Joun[ coiew moN :uonNIISU]

8002 - L00Z JeaA |edsi
Alewwing Jqiyx3

BE Hqiyxz

wnesnyy abejuoy wejseps 1oelfold



g abed

ajep uojsiaey *

“OU UOISIABY "UOISIASI B §] UWLIO) SIY} JI 399y

‘Buipiing sy} 10} JusWIUOIIAUS Pa||0|UOD B BUIABY JO 1SOD B} 0} PUB LBIS U 3SBAIOUI AIBSS303U SU} 0) 9N pasinbai s| Juawysnipe aseq ay )

'sjuaunsnipy eseg jo uogesysne
9 4 £ 3 #e1s 314 |eyo1
BYo
Z ueuysa )
Z F4 l l RS
z Z Z Z 1BUO|SS8j0.d
Aynoey
yeys ald
aosuejeg ysen
ajuejeg yse)-UoN Sso7]
aouejeg pung Buipug
(089'6£5) (68€'¥St) (162'c8) (215'892) (0£z'6£2) Sigjsued ] /senjipuadxy (3o
(000'061) (000'061) {(009°2G1) (000°061)
(089°'6¥€) (68¢'+92) (162'G8) {z.6'0L1) (0£Z'6) leuoymsu| (woud) o] siejsued
pajaLsaIun om.._m.._o aseqg pPapuIsay pajaulsaaun pajouLlsay poajalselurn
rejoL pajousaiun d
1senbay go-2002 10-900Z 32Bpng do 90-500Z S|en}oy .
p 2 e

abajj00 101unf 02)xe MaN uonnpsu|

8002-1002 Jea ) Jedsiy
Arewwng ainjipuadxsg

q¢ 3qiyx3

wnasny abejisy wisysap 13oafoid




. abed T ejep uoisiAey’ "OU UOISIAGY “UOISIABI B S| WLIOY SINI N 3aey9

‘wnasnpy suonisod 314
abejuoH Wajsap au) NISIA pue colXapy MaN wigjses ybnosy)
W0 siapAR) SE Jysuaq |IIm uoiBas sy jo Awouoos sy
() ‘sueoixapy maN Jo suolessuab 10edui [IM 0JIXSN MAN 089'6ES sain)ipuadxg |ejo|
usgises Jo Auojsiy ay) Buinuasalg (2) "ooixapy moN wsiseg L82'81L2 (asueusiurely 2 seninn) 12410
0} sauejuswnoop mau Buuq Alenunuos (Im Jsjesy) jess 2819l aoueINSU|
OrL aul (1) :sioedw) Jofew aaiy; eyedionue apn “[enuelsSqNs 000's [aael ]
9 ||m SUIZIYID pue SjUIPN)S BaJE U0 Joedw UOEONPS Bl G88'08 asuadxg pue sajddng
spedw) pajedionuy| 610°0G sjyauag ebuny
‘sann pue j[auuosiad £18'291 sajejeg
sainppusdxgy
[euolippe 18A02 |ImM Si1s02 Bunesadg "089'6EGE Buielo) INUBASY |Blo]
spung |elopag
ﬁmﬁoo Bunesedo ateys o) 000'06L$ 04 SI 1senbas dSdY Byl spund ajels 18y}o
I9jua) abieyaol weisepr iAoy pesodolyg jo uondudsag 000°061 pun4 jejaues)
£ 40 | Qiuoud jeuonninsu . anuaAay
abo[109 Jounp od1xap meN volnInsy| wnasnyy abejuoy wiaysaps :joeloig
8002-200C JedA |edsid

uojsuedx3 weibosd--Aiewwng sainypuadxy
¥ uqiyxs




g abed

"Jeak [228Y 900Z/G00Z BU} JO JieY JSOLJE 10} LOIINLSUOD O} SNP PISOD SBM WNASNL 3Ly |
000°'0¢ 0 0 sales doys Yo p
FA ZL 0 suonejuasaud Jojeay) o
S ¥ 2 suqyxa Buneaes) g QOIXON MaN
wnasny abejuay ula)sap 10 8)21S 2y} pue eale
00021 0058 196¢ o) 0] SI0)SIA JO JBaquinN e ay Jo Awouode ayy ausg g
s)qyxa Bulaaen jo JequinN o
SHQIYXa JO JagquinN g ssaualeme
wnasnpy abejusH uiaisepn [eanyn2 ajowold pue
3y} 0} SIOYISIA JO JaquNN "B Aojsiy jeuoifis) enlasald 'z
siqiyxa Buiaae.l “q
wnasnp abejusy uwis)sapn SUSZIID pue SJUapN]S ease
9y} 0] SIOJISIA JO Jaquiny ‘B Jo uoneanpe ay) Jyousg |
syebie] $9A1193[q0
aoueLLIopad 80 Ad s21ewnNs 40 Ad S[EMOY 90 A4 SaINSEAW geon
ab9)]09 Jolunp 091XaW MBN :UOIINIRSU| wnasny ebejusH uleisep :39efoid
8002 - L00Z Jed) Jedsty

XLIJe|N BleQ 9oUBWLIONSd

S NaIyx3




S00Z ‘) IsnBny

abueyn oN X wesboud Bunsixg jo uoisuedxy welbBoid meN :auQ ¥I9yn

ININLNVdIA NOILYONAT ¥IHOIH
OOJIX3N M3N

sSon9dyIy weiboig
863|100 Jowunp ooIXap MoN uUORNIISU]

800¢-200¢ 1ed) |easiy

1S3ND3Y NOILVINdOUddVY

SOILITHLY ALVIOTTIOJHILNI




*(v) soneiy

J0 {g) Lioinms ‘(Sd) eojaeg d1qnd ‘(d) yaleesey Jeyye se weys Anuep; eseeid ‘Koefosd meu Jog "uoRpMIASUY| By} O} uBLOdW) $| 1N

onjeys Aq pasnbeu jou sy 3aefoud (g) 40 ‘uoissRU jeuopmMRSUY) 0} [ENUSSSS $) ING SINEIS Ay Paunbad Jou S| poefoud (Z) ‘eIniEs Ag

peanbey 5| posfoud (1) :uopeunoyu) Buimoros ay) 81e31pu) 0) eweu y9efoud By} Jaye siequinu Buppe Aq s1oefosd ezpuoud 161N 9EBa|d,

TBO0ZZL L elep uosiney | "ON UOISIASY "UOISIAGU € SI LLIO} S} Y %90

[oABN pue Sel)ddns ‘SeuEEs pasealou]

Ul Bupnsal ‘wesboid ons|yie Buipuedxg

(1oey) souesIp/Buiuury AuUnoo-ss0I0)

00'000°251$ Hods s,uswom mau 1o} sdiysieloyos (v) (2} sonaiuny F4
314 1.PPY saimjpuadx3 abBueys wesboiy (Bupsix3z Jo maN) yuey
pajsanbay » SuieN 1oafoid
G00Z ‘ZL I1snbny pieog Gujuiaaogysuabay abe[|09 Joung 0JIXO| M3N uonmnsu|
Jo pseog Ag psaocuddy ajeq

8002-200T 1A |eds]y
s}sanbay 199losg meN pue abueyo weibold jo Atewwng




Z obed © 9002 2l L @1ep UoISIASY "ON UOISIASY °UOIStABI B §1 ULIOJ SIY) § H29UD

(payoene) 900z - S00Z Ul SuaWYSIAW0DY Y93loid

"ueld o1ba)ens ornWN sy ul
siuawsless uoisia Aey pue sajdiounud Buiyssesano ay) smojioy weibosd onapye ay| “sjeoh [euoneanpe Jiauy) piemo) Bujiom ase Asy) swi) swes ay) je Aipge
Jns|yie Jiay) ercidwul ued sajR|ye Juepn)s jey) os sanuNoddo SiBIylE Se |jem Se jeuoyeanpa apiacid o) S| OPIN 18 weiboud onjajyie ey; jo asodind ay |

s|eoo) joefoid

"XI SNLL Pajepuew A|[eJapad ay) Yim soueldwoo oju 86800 JojUNp 0dIXay MON Buuqg 0

palnbsi a1e wes} souep pue Buipesusays Jo spods pasodoid ay) pue yoes aouesip/Aunog 5040 “Wea) souep aaaduwiod

pue Buipeajiesyd aaadwos jo spods s,uawom pasodoid auy 104 Buipuny Bupsanbai osie s1 PN "Bunedwos s wes) sy; pue aoe|d
ur Apesuje ae pods mau ay Joj Buipuny pue Buyers Hoen SOUB]S|P/ALIUN0D §S010 'JOdS S,UBLIOM MaU BU) 1oy Buipuny [euoippe
Bunsanbal st DPWN 869100 ay 4o uoissiw anbiun ey jo ued jeguasse ue aie absjj07 Jounp 0oIXaP MaN Je swelboid JBIUIY BYL

{(¢parepuew Ajlesapay )t | japimaless )l 1) adoag pue uoissiyuonduosaq 19oloiy

:(10oloud siu Jo souassixs ay) Buikuapun *Aue ) Ajuoyiny Kioynjeg

#69jj09 Jojunr 02IXaW MBN uolNINSU] sone|yly  :3oeloig

8002 - L00T JedA jeosiy
MBIAIDAQ J98l0ug

L Hgyx3




¢ ebegq

: DOOT ZL L _BIep Uoisay -

‘O UOISIAGY "UDISIASY B S) ULIo) S J1 o040

e

SliqelieAy (E10]

ysed-UCN,

yse,
aguejeg pund Suiuibag

000°ES1

006°ZLE | 00l'ob

001’6 L2E'0E

ejogng

SjuRIS) % SIORIUOYD [eueped,

uoneudaddy jeioped,

SpunJ [eiepa]

{pung Juauelusy ‘pue]
"uwmopu3 ‘voneudouddy |eD07 sapnpur)
840,

INUBABY 15070 1984IpUY|,

SIEAU 16 (650 ‘OyETS)
SREHUCD § SRS,

000°L

0 000'L

3414

MeS @ SRS,

Spung 81BALGABIOANELS JBUID

000'Z5L

006CLL | 001 BE

00L'6E 006'5e

ucfeudo.ddy eyg/pung (esauss)

paRMRILN
ey

alveyn eseg
pelmsan
1sanbay 800Z-2002

[CETETT
eseq oy fpy

PaIOISed [ pERUISAILN]  peRmsey paRmsan

L002-9007 186prg do 9002-5002 Siery

senueAsy

) )

260]j07 JOJUNP COIXIW MBN UOMINISY)

B00Z - L00T Jeo), |2ISld
Aewuwing anuaasy

Z Hayx3

sopaMy oefoad



¥ abed 9002217 3IBpUOISIASY T ON UOISIASY "UOISIAS) B §1 WIOJ SIL} JI A8UD
520'0se | 006'ZLL | 261'827 161822 098'002 sanypuadx3 1ejogns
Les'6ze | 0EL’'e9 | L00'09E 200'992 £#£°992 IO
085'0Ge [ sz1'or | csor'0le SoF'oLE 809'26C 81800 JAyIQ €101
¥Z0'L juswidinb3
gza'LLL ] sze'el | 86626 966'26 £9¥'ELL jeALL
262'gee | ose'Le | lov'ile L0¥'21LE XA sesuadx3 pue sanddng
§1S09 RO
0000 | 66¢'L €562 £45'62 91¥'62 sjjeusg ebuld [&0L
000'9 & & S By
UORINg JO AR
‘dwo?) Juawiodwsun
¥Z [Z4 (4 UONESUSALIOY SISNIOM
000°0Z 6Z6'Sl 626'G L G28'GlL goueInsu] dnougy
AHNJag |e1os
000'¥L | 86%'L 029°'tl 0Z9'tl 215'CL JBwRiey
Ssusg abull|
80.'6Z) | 96¥'Z Z12'TT! cLZ'Zel 6+’ 1L S8lie[eg (2101
sauees BY10
ssueeg APNIS }OM 5118
SALBRS Juapns
saUees V1D
2G6'LL LS6°L1 1S6'LE 0LF'LL seueleg yels Yoddng
1SL£20L | 96v'L GGZ 0L S62'0LL £20°101 SSlIe|eg [BUOISS8)0Id
- salees Ajinoe4
sauees
papuisauun | ebuey) aseg papmsaun|  pepouisey pepuIsaIun|  papusay papusaiun
FI0L pejmsan aseg o 'Ipv saumjpuedxy
wonbay 8002-2002 2002-9002 96png “do 50026002 S1emoy
L] p 2 q e
aBojj05 Jolunr odiXaW MaN uUCRNINSU| sallejyyy :oefoid

8002 - 2002 leaA |edsid
Arewwng ainyipuadxg

BE Nqyx3z



G abed

2£2°08¢ 049 100°21€ 100°21E ePe'lLE $1S00 JAY10 [ej0L
000'9 000'9 000'9 000'9 uolje2o|ly 1507 Moddng sy
000'St 000'St 000'S¥ 000°SP (-o)e'sapun‘jelpojsnaiuiey)
uonedo)|y 1807 jueld [edlshud
FRIN A 0£L'et 100'L0Z 100°'102 856602 S}S02 JAYID :Ply-Ul-sjueID)
000's8 000'02 000'S9 000'59 G8£'09 S99 pue uoyINg piy-ul-sjueis)
a3aLoHLSIHENN abuey) aseq £0/9002 90/5002 NOILdI¥OS3A
TViOL 139an9°'do STIVNLOV
80/200Z
1s83noax
8002-200Z ¥V3IA vISId
S1S09 ¥3H10 40 livl3a
V€ LISIHX3 OL INGWHOVLLVY

3b3a[j07D) JOIUNT ODIXay MEN UONMISU] SONRIIY 199101g



9 ebey

AT

lep voisiAay -

‘ON UQISIAGY ‘UOISIAGY B SIULIOYSILR Y ey

Spusunsnipy asegq Jo uoneaylsnp

:¥4

6§

X4 [ X~

Heig 314 2900,

B0

UBINLIS L

50

S0

S0 g0

1e0ua|noag

v

| 44

ve gt

JeUCISSa)QIg

#Es 3141

@iueeqg yse))

G0UB|eq USE-UON 556

sJUEjeg pund Buipug

000’251

006211

001 '6E

001'6€ 00S'vE

SI8JSUBLL/SINipURdX3 e

{5z0'g69)

\9ED'vE0)

(£60'689) (9e8'+89)

{woly) 0] sv)sue] |

paalqsarny
1oL

abueys

sanbay 800Z-2002

aseg pepmsaiun

pamsasun aseq 0 Iy

papusay papumsan|  pawnsey pIRUsIUN

2002-900Z 1eBpng do 900Z-500Z Siemay

sunipuadg

)

9 9

ab2)j07) Jowunp 02JX3 MaN tuORMPSUY|

e

800Z - 2002 12 ) Jedsid
Aewwng ainyjpuadxg

q¢ Hqux3z

MLy 19sfosd



4 abed “—000Z ¢t /_9Iep UoISIASY ° ‘ON UOISIASY "UOISIASL B §) LLLIO) SIp I eilte)

B R B — SUONISOd 314
PR saimpuadxy |2)o 1]

0€.'€9 (vi9) 13410
Juswdinb3|
"UoREINoSSY |enual yuoN ‘Aocuabe Bunipasoe sy Aq ofie sieak G apew SUOEpUALILLIODa) SB cz9'gl _%
o4 SE "Y1 SLL Ui Aldwios pinom DN ‘sasuadxa pajejel pue sdiysieoyos asauy Buipung Ag 0se’L2 asuadxg pue se)ddng
Joedw pajedonuy [ 66v°L sjyaudg sabuug

96" S3UE|ES

saJmypuadxy)|

‘wes} souep pue Suipeapgayo 'sueld au U e spods [euomippe om) Ainbe sapuab BuipieBal

X1 9L Jo sjuswannbas awp Wm Adwoo o} 19BpNng LO/000Z SI Ut Hods mau siyl pajuewsidw  [EEsEE

8nuUaAay (€01

OrN Hioen SsUBSIp/BUUUN AQUNOD-SSOID ‘HOdS SUBLIOM MaU SOMAN UM PajenossSe spund |1apag
13aeq pue sayddns ‘ssue|es *sdiysie|oyas onajure Buipury saajoaur uosuedxs 1osfoid sny Spund aje)s Jago
:Ayapdy pasodoid jo uonduosaq [HERE pung jeiauas
€ o 4 Auoud [eucnmnsu) SBNUBAIY
aBojj0D Jolunr cone MON ucpIISU| sojejyyy ‘joeloid
8002 - L00T 189 A |e9si4

uonesynsnr abueys weiboud
¥ uqiyx3



g abeyd

soueldwoo %001 ‘2

*Apoq Juspms
ay} Joj abelane ay)
JOLIW [|IMm B1BJ SSB2INS

vIuY JuspmIg "qL

aoueidwod o400, el

souedwo2 %001 2

"Apoq yuapnys
ay) Jo} abesane ay)
JOLIW (|1 SJE1 $S220NS

sj8|uY JUspNIS ‘gl

aoueydwod %00) el

%SZ jo
pJepue)s ale)s papsesoxy g

(%-g9) Apoq Juapms

uey) ssa| Apybs

{%9) se18ipe 10}

8)e) SS9IINS JUSPMS 'ql

"OfWN 18
son9|yie ul pajedionied sey
uapns iqifiieul oN ey

SPJEME JO MAIAGI [ENULEBABISIWDS 2

‘1spopy Buipun4 paseg ssueuuouad
3y} w1 paysi|qe)se sprepues Aq
PaUILLIAIBP 3q ||IM SS829NS JUEPNIS “ql

SISE(Q JB)SILBS B U0
paJoyuo Je Spiepuels AgiBi3 ‘el

$9|pN}s [euonednpa

Joj Ajlenuue SJaAlem UcN) pue
‘s8] 'UoNIN) SIBjYIe JUSpNIS
00IXBN MBN U} Spiacad jim
Spuny pajedo||e Jo 30w 10 %67
1ey; sjuswannbal WN Jo AjeS
ey} peadxejasall |IM OrAIN °2

'VHIN

Jeak unoj pue om} pue YyorN
Jeak om) ay} Yum uongadwoo

PUE JUSWIBASIYOE JILLISPEIE SMO|[R
UdIUM OrN Joj weiBoud onsjyie
aAaisuayasdwos e apinold L

syabie}
8oUBLLLIOLad 80 Ad

sejewns3 Lo Ad

S[emoY 90 A4

sansean

S9AN9Iq0
5[e09

abajjoD Jolunf odixeW MaN tuoMmIIsu)

8002 - 200C Jea |edsld
XuJeW ejeg esuewIouad

S 1qiyx3y

SopeYIV :3oafoid




& abeg

0 0 [ejol c0'd ¥l |elel
AASINO v£°9 <] NEISINO
1810-IN0 9r'0 l 8Ig-INO
s1q-ul 20 4 1SIg-u|
EIE] junodpea EIE] junodpeay
STUYMY SAUYMY
MEW Jspuss Jodg M uwu@ AUNOY) SSOID) S,USLLOAA Utonm
ar'9 414 |ejoL 69'6 Gl €04
29 9 81e1S-1N0 902 Ll €IS IO
6C°C A 1810 £9°¢C ¥ 1s1g-no
GS'L JA 1SIg-u| 0 IsIg-ut
T wnodpesH a4 unoopeaH
SQUYMY SQUVMY
MBI Jepuagy 03p0Y ‘Hodg W 18puagy lleqiexseg suspy Jodg
o'y g |ejor 62l 62 |ejoL
vy JA NeISIN0 9901 02 1RSI0
4] 0 1SIGINO (743 9 [ lils]
20°0 L s1a-u 280 £ s1g-y|
EIE] junaspesH EIE] Wnoopeay
SAUYMY SQUYMY
W Japuagy Hoo) ‘Hodg W 18puag) lleqgaseq sods
69°01 14" 1ejoL 12¢ L |ejoL
646 Zl ARSI £9°1 14 ABISING
280 | 1S1g- N0 £6°0 Z 1SIgnO
200 } ig-ul LLG 1 =Ig-u
EIE junoopesy 314 junoopes
SQUVMY SAUYMY
A Bpuan l[EqaysSey S,USWOA pods MBI JopuUsg Buiel T uods
000's$ $994 ' UoqIn] |G JOINQ “Bay uipieH ueq :Aq pauedaid
000°s$ $884 @ uoniny 1s1g-4o0-InQ Bay 89|00 Jolunr 0orxay MaN -uonmgsu)
000's$ $334 g uonIn ousIg-u Bay 800TTLiL ‘@leg
90/500Z Je9 ) Jlwapely

spiemy diysiejoyss ape|uiy j0 letuwing
uonesnpz Joybiy Uo UOISSIWWOY OJIXIN MON




NEW MEXICO JUNIOR COLLEGE
INTERCOLLEGIATE ATHLETICS

2005-06 HONORS

Lady T-Bird Basketball

Player Honors:

Maggie Smith-Davidson(so), WJCAC All-Conference, Region V All-
Region, Oregon

Rebecca Miles (so), WJCAC All-Conference Honorable Mention,
Australia

Nicci Miller(fr), WJCAC All-Conference Honorable Mention, Colorado

Lady T-Bird indoor Track

Team Honors:

Player Honors:

At National
Championship

T-Bird Basketball

Player Honors:

T-Bird Baseball

Team Honors:
Player Honors:

7“‘ in natlon distance medley relay team 5" in nation; 4x400-meter relay
team 6" in nation

Mele5|a Mafileo (fr), NJCAA All-American, National Champion in triple
jump, 4™ in shot put, Tongo

Kashain Page (so) NJCAA All-American, National Runner-Up in 60-
meter hurdles, 7" in 200-meter dash, Jamaica

Eunice Jepkogei (so), NJCAA All-American, member of 5™-place
distance medley relay team, Kenya

Gabriela Rodriguez(fr), NJCAA All-American, member of 5"‘-place
distance medley relay team, Eunice, NM

Melshanda Speed (fr), NJCAA All-American, member of 5"-place
distance mediey relay team, New Jersey

Cottrell Martin (so), NJCAA All-American, member of 6™-place 4x400-
meter relay team, 8™ in 200-meter dash, Jamaica

Deidra Harrison (fr), NJCAA All-American, member of 6"-place 4x400-
meter relay team, 5™ Place Distance Mediey Relay, Jamaica

Monique Davis(fr), NJCAA All-American, member of 6"‘—place 4x400-
meter relay team, El Paso, Tx.

Terri Hannah (fr), 8" in 60-meter hurdles, New Jersey

Ed Millard (so), WIJCAC All-Conference, Region V All-Region, Pa.
Bud Willis (so), WJCAC All-Conference Honorable Mention, Clovis, NM
Charles Prescott(fr), WJCAC All-Conference Honorable Mention, Ca.

Western Junior College Athletic Association 2006 Champions

Western Junior College Athletic Association
2005 All-Conference

Matt Speake (fr.) Pitcher, Canada

Isaac Rincon (so) Infielder, Ca.

Mike Gosse (so) Infieider, Canada

Brian Cavazos-Galavez (fr) Outfielder, Albuquerque, NM
Pedro Gomez (fr) Outfielder, Puerto Rico



Nick Sanders (fr) Designated Hitter, Albuquerque, NM
MVP-WJCAC Baseball 2006

Brian Flores {so0),Carlsbad, NM
WJCAC Coach of the Year 2006

Ray Birmingham

National Junior College Athletic Association

All-Region V Baseball
Brian Flores (so) Pitcher,Carlshad, NM

Mike Gosse (so) infielder,Canada
Brian Cavazos-Galavez (so) Ouffielder, Albuquerque, NM
Nick Sanders (fr) Designated Hitter, Albuguerque, NM

National Junior College Athletic Association
2006 Baseball

All American
Brian Flores (so) Pitcher 1* Team,Carlsbad, NM
Nick Sanders (fr} Designated Hitter 3™ Team,Albuguerque, NM
Brian Cavazos-Galavez (fr) Outfielder-Honorable Mention
Albugquerque, NM

American Baseball Coaches Association

All American

Brian Flores (so) Pitcher 1* Team,Carisbad, NM
T-Bird Golf
Team Honors: NJCAA-National Golf Championship 15™ place

Player Honors:

WJCAC-All Conference and NJCAA Region V- All Region
Johan Linden (fr), Sweden
Sebastian Gunnarsson (fr) Sweden

T-Bird Rodeo
Individual Honors:
2005-06 National Intercollegiate Rodeo Association
Southwest Region 10 Rodeos
Alicia Sandoval (fr) 2™ place Barrel Racing, Bloomfield, NM

NIRA {Nationai Intercollegiate Rodeo Association) College Finals- Casper, Wyoming

Alicia Sandoval {fr) 2™ place Barrel Racing

2006 National Intercollegiate Rodeo Association
Southwest Region/Southern Region- Houston Livestock Collegiate Rodeo

Alicia Sandoval (fr) 2™ place Barrel Racing



NJCAA 2006 NATIONAL CHAMPIONSHIP
WOMEN'S OUTDOOR TRACK-Coffeyville, Ks.

Team Honors: NMJC Lady T-Birds were 11™ out of 23 Teams/out of 22 Events scored

Player Honors: Kashain Page (so) 2m place Women’s 100 meter Hurdles- Jamaica
All-American Honors - Personal Best 14.05 sec.
Melesia Mafilo’s (fr) - Tonga
All American Honors 6% place Women's Shot Put 41°-1"
All-American Honors 5™ place Women's High Jump 5'-3.75"-
All-American Honors 6™ place Women's Triple Jimp 37’-7.25"
All American Honors 5™ place Women's Javelin Throw 127°-10"
7™ place Women's Heptathlon-7 Events 4146 points

National Junior College
Athletic Association

Academic All - American
2005-2006

Maggie Smith-Davidison (so)
Academic All-American

Ontario, Oregon



National Junior College
Athletic Association 2005-
2006
Male Student/Athlete of the
Year

Brian Flores (so) Carlsbad,
NM



§002 ‘z) isnbny

X wesboid Bunysix3g jo uoisuedxy wesboid meN :auQ) yoayn

ININLAVdIA NOILYINAT HIHOIH
OJIX3N M3IN

uoisuedxg GuisanN wesBoid
oBa]|0D Jolunp odxe meN uonpnNISU;

8002-L002 120, |edsid

1S3ND3Y NOILVIIdOHddY

NOISNVdX3 ONISHNN




Z obeg

*(v) sonsipy

Jo (g} Auoyms (sd) eopueg oliqnd (M) ydueesay sauyye sv wews AJuep eses)d ‘sposfoid mau Jog ‘uopnyisy] ey 0} Juelodiy S| Jng
symeys Ag paainbeu Jou s pefosd (g} Jo ‘uoissiw jeuoMASU] 03 |BRUBSSS | Ing A)ye}s Aq pasinbas Jou s1 10ejosd (2) ‘eymEls Aq
paiinbaa st 10afoud {1) :uopeuLIojul Bumo||o) ey a1edipUY) 0} Sweu Joefosd ey Jaye siequinu Bulppe Aq s1aefosd ezppoud Jeyung eseald,

GO0Z-ZI-8 918 UOISIABY —  'ON LDISINSY "UOISIAG) B SIULIOS Sit 41— X §08uD)
~Bugsixy
00'00Z'¥52% wesboid sy puedx3 (8d) (2} uoisuedx3 Buisiny €
314 PPV sainyipusdxy abueyn weiboig {Bupsixa 10 mop) juey
pojsenbay » SWeN 128foid
600Z ‘'zl ysnbny pieog Gujwaaog/sjusboy 9bB9]j0D JoIUN[ OJIXOW MeN uopmpsu|

10 paeog Aq panosddy ajeq

8002-L00C Jea) [eosiy
sysanbay 109foid meN pue abueyn weiboud j0 Arewwng




"AJejes aseq sy} 9583.10UI 0} SAUASUL UB 8pIA0Id pue uoljusyas Aynoey ajowold |im padils U] "Siaye) S8} aLn-)siL
se NY-X371ON aui Buissed ssjenpelt jo sbejuaosed ay) uo paseq puadys e yum saueles Aynaey Juswsddng :uejd eAnuasu| Lnoeg (

‘aseq afipamou 18y ajepliea pue Ayseio o) eyenpelb auy oy Ayunpoddo ue s) 8SIN09 ABp iNoj 8] “WEXS
aINsuadl| ay) Joj [eusjew Apnis [enpiAlpul sepiroid pue suolsanb wexs ainsuad) Uy peal 0} Moy Mouy o} sjenpe.b ay) 1sisse o) uolieanpa
Bursnu ur sa1doy jje Jo meiaal aasualul ue st Wwesboud siy) NY-XTTON dU) JO Jaye] 1$8) auIp-1siy B S 8insuadl) Ny Buiuielqo ul Injssanons

9q o} slenpest ay) aiedaid 0} asinoD meAey N-XI 1IN Aep unoj ayis-uo ue JayQ ‘wesBoid $$32ang XIJON $5009NG Juapms (g

‘welboid Nd 2y} 10} sjuapnys $z-g1 Aq weiboid Buisinu,

ay) Ul juswjosud asessoul o} [enusiod sy} sey weiboud sy "weiBosd sjemul pue 200z (&) Buunp sjuesiidde payenb jo Jusugunoal

annjoe uibaq 12002 lIe} Aq Buisin jo pJeog N 0} pajuasaid aq o} WNNJLIND Nd B 3JUAA “SI00YoS ybik Ajunod ea yim uonesadoos

ur weJBboid N ,0UO0IE puels, e dojeAap :SJUepNIS [eUOHIPEI})-UCU PUE SJOJUSS pue Siolunf [0oyas yBiH Jo} welBoid Buisiny leanoeuy (2

‘uonlye Juspnis aonpal 0} s [eoh ey weiboid su ui UoENUYUOD SjUBPN}S B}

19edW] JYBIW YDIYM SWIBSUOD [R19ads UO SJUBPN}S [8SuUNoD pue ‘sfeusjew uojediidde pue sJomiaded ssaooad ‘Bupse) eouepupe-aid ajey|ioe}
‘s9unpaoosd Juawjoiua YBnoiy way) ylem ‘sjuapnis asIApe (1M Jsieloads uonuajes ay) Isijeldads uonueley yesH paily (g

"(X370N) wexa ainsuslf Buisinu ay 104 uosedesd se [[om se swexa [euly pue 8sINcd 1o} uoiesedaid yBnoiy) uonuelel Juapns ajowoid

I wesboud sy “waysAs ay Suluieurew pue Buuoyuow ‘Buloje) Joj puadis B Anoey Joyo pue weysAg Buiwea ay) 0) Ssa00E,

Jusps yoea aplaoid |m Buipuny siamsue Buoim Jo Jybu se sajeuonel JaJj0 swexa aoyoeld ay} uo suorsanb sy WNNJLLIND 3y} Jnoybnoiy

Apms jo jun yaes poddns 0} Aynoey ayy Aq PaJoyUCLL pUE PAIOJIE) 9] UBD SWEXD 8dij0Rld "we)sAg Bules yoddng wnnowing g0
BUI-UO 3Y) JojuoW pue ulRulew (|im Aynoey wetboid wexa asyoeid pue Bupoin) peseg-qam pazusindwo) (y

‘uonuajey Juspms (1

:Aynoey Buisinu pue sjuapn}s ulgjal pue uswijolus puedxe o} sweiboid Bumoljo} auy uo snooy |Im wesbold BuisinN abs|j0D Jolunp odixap MON

's|eon) joaloiy

‘Buiwiea) yBnouy sssaons ejowosd 0} uoissilw §,063(109 aU) 0} [eNA sI 353J107 Jojunf 0I1XS MeN Je welboid Buisiny ay ||
‘abepoys fnoey
Buisinu pue Buisinu sy} ssaJppe 0} WN Wisiseayinos [ens ul weiboud Buisinu ay) jo uojsuedx] :edoag pue uoissiy/uondusseq 1oeloid

‘Sjepuew e Jou Jnq ‘aAnepIul epimalels e lauop ((19sfoud siy; o eoua)sixe ayy Buikpapun ‘Aue Jj) Auoyiny Aiojnje;s

ab69]j0) Jolunr 0oIXaW MIN :uUONIRSY| uojsuedxg BuisinN  :19efoid

800C - L00Z Je3A |eosi]
MIIAIBAQ Jaaloud

I Nqiyxy



¢ abed " GO0Z-¢1-8_SIep uoisihoyg

'S9I0N

OIQEeAY (B0

YSED-UON,

CW@OO
soueleg pung u_..__:c_uwﬂ

002'vSe | 00§'2iL 00L°18 00L'18 (44 [E0igng

SIUBID) 3 SIDBNU0D [BIeped,

uolieudaiddy [eiepad,

Spund |esapad

{pund jusueuuag ‘pueq
uaumopu] ‘uoneudosddy [e007 sepnfoul)

18410,

anusAey 1567 IDaulpu,

SIBAL 10 [E907 "B)E1S)

SRRAUOY P SIUBID,

S = 80IAI3S g S3eg,
- 00009 UONED0|(Y BUISINN, - SpUny 8je1g Jeul0
00Z¥Sz | 005¢il | 00218 0018 00272 uorsuedys BUISINN uonendoaddy oiE1g/pung JEieusD)

papuisaien | sbueyd oseq papLsaILn pappisad] capusann|  pepuisay papusaIun
[e1a4, papmsalun aseq o} "py| sanuaAgy
159nbay 8002Z-2002 £002-900Z 195png 00 90025002 SIEMOY
E) p ] q e

260|109 JOUN OJ|XIW MON UORMASY| uosuedxg Bujsuny :)32efoig

800Z - 2002 1ed), [BISId
Arewung anuaasy

Zuqiyx3a



5 abed ’ 900Z- 18 QIep uoisiasy "ON UOISIASY “UOISIAS) B SI UL SII Y X oayn

219'v66 00Z'v¥se LL¥'0FL ZL¥'ObL L6£'9EL sainypuadx3 [eloigng
g868'see 8691 86914 PS9'60L 51500 B0 [&10L
58901 yawdinbg
00001 000'0L 000°0L 056°8 1U3LLCO|2AD(] |BUDISS8Y0Id
058'0L 058'0L 058°0L SOF'LL 13ARS)
8ET'GE S80IAJOS DUNST] '§ 51591
898'0S 818'0S 819'0S 9lE'ZY sasuadix3 pue saddng
000°05 000'0S weBoig aauesu] Agjnoeg]
00Z'sl 002°61 SS509NS X TON IUSPMS NY|
000'001 000°'00L weiBoid j0oyds yBiH Nd|
000°sy 000°'Sy 1s|jejoedg uojualey yyraH PalIlY|
000°0¥ 000°'0% {1sa194d ‘majael peseq gqepr) uolue}aY JuspMS
5)S03 Jo0
0LL'201 011°201 011201 5680l s)ysuag abuu] €101
& 1B2U10
- UoIIN| JO JOAIRAA
dwo yuawAodiaun
t1]} oLl oLl 901 uonesuUadIc) SISNIOM
000' ¥t 000t 000'tt g816'L¥ S0UBINSU[ dnoisy
- Aunoag (enos
000'€9 000°c9 000'€9 1€8°19 EETEY)
Syeuaqg obuug
609195 - 609°L98 609°'L9S 288'2¢S SOUE(ES [EJ0 ]
salees JaIO
Ssle|jeg Apnig UM 18IS
Sauejeg juspms
Saleles ¥Y1/v9
2r8'0g - 1¥8'0Z Ly8'0Z 00£'2Z Salle[eg Yels poddng
665°89 - 66589 665'89 £69'98 SoUE|eg |euaISSaj0.d
£91'2Ly £91'Zi¥ £91'2it 626'CLY saueleg Ajnoed
Souejeg
PemsaIun L) eseg pawmsalun|  perusey) pesaun|  pewpnsey pepIRsaI
1890 palMsaIun eseqg 0 ‘lpy saimypusdxy
159nbey 800Z-2002 100Z-9002 196png 40 9002-500Z SIEMIY
2 p 2 q e
28B9)j0D Jolun 02X MIN UCIINMIIISU| uoisuedxg Bujsiny oafoud

8002 - L00Z Je3 |edasiy
KAewwing ainypusdxg

2 Jaqipaq



g abed 9002-1-8  8Jep uoisiaay "ON UOISIABY ‘UOISIABI B STULIO) ST X jo8YD
”wucw:bm:_uz.‘ aseg Jo uoyeaynsne
[ Ll ¥0l oL T EETETEI
Ll Ll 6 ¥'8 '8 Ainoe
UBDIuYyoa |
I A L ! [BOUS|D/09G
! I L L [BUOISSDJ014
gels 3.4
aouejeg ysen
aouejeg Ysen-uopN $sa7
gouejeg pun4 Suipuy
{£19'v66) (211'228) {Z1¥'0vL) (L6€'9EL) sJojsuel | /sesnypuadx3 [e1o |
(025'9¢1) uoreoo)iy (WoJd) oL sigysuel ]
{00Z'+52) (0oS'2LL) (002'1L9} {(002'L8) (920'0%) uorsuedx3 (woi4) oL SiejsuBly
(LLY'0pL) (Z1L¥'0b2) {21.2'859) (S¥2'655) uonannsu| (Woid) 0| sisjsues |
pajousalun ebueyn oseqg jasaiun vaEmom_ _um.o_._ﬁE::, pPRUIsaY palsaIun
EeL pejousasun | 0} ‘Toy seinyipuadxy
1senbey 800Z-L002 £002-9002 ye8png "dO 9002-5002 sienioy
= p 2 q B

262)]0D Jounp 0OMXa| MBN UOIINIISY|

uoisuedxz GuisinN

8002 - 200¢ 1eaA Jedstd
Aewwng ainypuadxy

qg Nqyx3

3oafosgd



2 ebed

900Z-1-8_ B1EP UOISIASY -

"ON UOISINGY "UDISIAGY B SIuuop sy it~ X ¥29u)

"SJUBPNIS O PUB Welbod BuE WaLaq ||

I Z suonisod 14|
Aynoey Buisunu jeuonippe omi SU L “JeAS] NY PUB Nd 8Ut 1t uotsuedxs wesboud uo 1oedw) |jeseao ue 00Z'¥5T sainypuadxy _m_o.:
aaey jw weaboud sy ‘pajuswaldw) usym suspms FzZ-91 AQ JUSWYICIUS SSEBIUL 0) [enusiod moou__
a1 sey weufoud Nd 9UOJE-pUEIS B Uim JUSW|IOIUS [BUOIPPE 8] sejenpeld jenuajod Jo Jaquinu 000°001 wesbold Nd SHJ
Jasbie e Supoddns sny “weibosd Buisinu ayy oju jJuawjosus e ey Buiseasou sjediopue 000°05 weibol4 sanuasuy Amoe )

em 'sasunoo aysinba-aid s Bunje) sl oym sjuepnls ul sseaans Buusiso) Aq ‘Ajleuonippy 000'sy 1slieIseds vogusley YllesH paty
"suapns Zi Aq ssepo Bunenpeib ay) aseasoul pjnom siU] ‘esunod Buisiny pue Buisinu-aid 002’61 $S300NS X3 10N UepPMS NY

Yore 10} JOMO| 10 %G O} S1BI LONUNE BU) 80NP3J 0} S1 JSIE13dS uonuelay UNESH pallly U pue 000'0F (¥s610ud ‘molrar paseq qBAn) UORUBIaY Juspns
wexe aonoerd pue Buuoim peseq-gam pezueindwos sy JO UONUB)ES B SND0} Yy (M [EoB ety esuadxg pue sayddng
Joedw) pajedionuy syeueg sebup|

‘wesBoud N 100405 YBiH E JO UORIPPE 8y} UBNGiiy JUSLIGIUS BUIPUEdXe 'SE ||om SE mo_._m_mm_

fInoey pue SHUAPNIS 104 SSTING PUE LORUSISY UO SN0 O} BNURLOD ||t 80-200Z JoJ [esodoid auy ) senyipuadxy|

"wesboug aagusou| fHnoed g pue 1SIESAS UCRUSISY LesH pelllyY
B ‘535102 BuisinN-aig euwjuQ ‘sse0ong X310N uepns Ny ppe pue weiboud ey puedxs 002'L8 anuaAsy |20 |
0) SE [[@M SE LONUS)SJ u0 SO0y 0} SI L00Z-900Z 50} Iesodaud ey uopusial Juepn)s paziseydwe
weibotg uoisuedxg Buisiny aul 800Z-G00Z 01 £00Z-Z00Z Wold “weibold Buisiny suy wosy - 19A0ALED UDISUBRDXT |
BugenpesB sasunu Jo Jaquinu sy puedxs o) | Weibord uoisuedx3 Buisiny ay) Jo asodind sy sSpund a)e1s Jsuyi0
:Ayanov pasodoid jo uondussaq [ 002718 pung |eJsueg)
£ Jo [ Auoud jeuognnsu sanuaaey
aba|jo 0N 0JXBW MBN UOPIMASU| uojsuedxg Bujsuny Joefosd

8002 - 200Z J1ed), |edasl4
uoneaypsnr sbueyn weibosy

P uqlyx3a



g abed

paulelad ||

%001

wawoiua papelold Zz1L

Pajluua 221
(+eaf puz) ssowydog - gg
(1eak )s1) urlIySAI] - 9T

Bugs|dwoo pue suepnis Nd SH 81
sajenpest Buisuny [eanoRld 8

Aynoey (210} 14
panyz
pauelal §

%001

awyciue papaloid 96

pajjaiue 96

{1eaf puz) asowydog - gf
(1ead)s1) uBWIYSBI - @

sajenpest SutsunN [eanoeld gt

%001 1& sajes

ssed NY-X3TON 9002-G00Z 10}
aAuaoul AYNoe} WnLEXew
PaAIgd3l 10J0al1 pue 3__._03 9
Aynoey 12101 6

Sy mau |

pauiejal g

900z L€ AIne

Jo se NY/X3ION passed

pue uaye} aAeyY ¢ Jo ¢
pspuane sjuspnis ¢

M331 NY/XT DN PAPUale %00}

juswijjosul jejo] 94
pajloiua g2

(Jead pug) suowydog - ¢¢
{1eak1s)) vewysald - g

sajenpesb (2301 19

sajenpelb Buisiny [eonoeld 9z

sjoenuod JuswAojdwe Buiubis
Aynoey payenb Jo Jaquiny

S0 Aepy U1 OPAIN Jo sejenpeul
10} jeu ssed Ny WN JO 1usdIag

Bujjicuue syuspMs Jo JAQUINN

181y 3y ue Na-X31ON au buissed

Aynae) Buisinu
pawenb jo sequinu ayy c_Eww_r

ydwane|

SIUBPNIS JO JBQUINU BY) BSESIOU|

weiboud Suisinu ay) Buuawe
SjUepN}s JO Jaquunu 8y} aseasou]

- wesboud

S8lenpelsy sajenpeib sajenpest Buisinu ayy Jo 1eak puosas pue Isy
Buisinn aatba 91210088y g Bursann sauBeq a)ewossy g  Buisiny saibaq sjepossy o¢| Bunenpesb syuspns jo Jaquiny| sy Buusiue sjueprys JO uonualey
spebue) $8A129Iq0
aouewwopad 80 Ad sajewysy 10 Ad S|enay 90 Ad sansesp S[eos)

ab8]j0D JoIUN 0D[XAW MAN uORNISU|

8002 - L00Z Jea) |edsiy

XUjely ejeq eaueuLIopad

S Hqiyx3

uojsuedxg Guisuny SJvaload



NMJC
Nursing Expansion
Proposal

2007-2008

Submitted August 2006
Karen Cummings, RN, MSN
Director of Allied Health



Retention and Success
Programs

I. Web Based Curriculum Support

Learning System

o Student Success and Retention
¢ Faculty Salary Stipend

II. Student Success Program
NCLEX-RN Live Review Course

III. Faculty Retention and
Incentive Plan

1V. Allied Health Retention Specialist



Student Retention and Success Programs

Introduction

The Student Success Program incorporates a computerized curriculum support learning
system, a NCLEX-RN Review course and the faculty incentive plan. This program
supports the nursing student by providing resources to supplement learning and prepare
for nursing and licensure exams. The overall goal of the program is to increase the
number of successful nursing graduates that are prepared to pass the NCLEX-RN and
enter the nursing workforce. This program focuses on reducing student attrition from
nursing education through a computerized learning system,; increasing student completion
rates; and increasing retention of faculty through the incentive plan based on student
success.

Web-based Curriculum Support Learning System

The Student Success Program is founded in a computerized curriculum support learning
system that is created and monitored by nursing faculty. The learning system provides
the student with a source of tutoring for course work and practice exams. The student
utilizes the system as a study method to increase course grades on unit exams; thereby,
increasing retention of the student and successful completion of the course. Nursing
faculty members tailor curriculum content specific practice exams that can be accessed
from the student’s home computer with a course specific password. The computer
program provides the student with rationales for right and wrong answers. The student
utilizes the learning system as tutoring for an upcoming exam. The computer program
offers the student an unlimited review of the practice exams. The leaming system is
utilized throughout the nursing program as supplemental learning tool and a personalized
tutoring program. This portion of the Student Success Program addresses student
retention and completion to increase the number of NM nursing graduates.

The funding will provide $4,000 per faculty member to supplement their base annual
salary. The request for 10 faculty members is $40,000. The total request is $40,000 for
the faculty to implement and utilize the total curriculum support learning system.,

Student Success Program for Graduates of 2008 RN program —

Live Review Course for NCLEX-RN

The NCLEX-RN review course, a part of the Student Success Program, is a four day
intensive course that prepares the graduate for success on the licensure exam. The Level
II (ADN) graduates signs a contract to ensure attendance and participation in the review
course. This agreement is upheld by holding the graduate’s transcript until completion of
the review course. The graduate cannot apply for the licensure exam until the transcript
is released to the Board of Nursing. The review course addresses the nursing shortage by
promoting an increase in the number of qualified nursing graduates.

New Mexico Junior College Nursing Program proposes to offer a NCLEX-RN live
review course following successful graduation. We will request the funding to pay for
each student to attend a mandatory review course provided by a national company. The
course will be held on-campus. This course prepares the graduate nurse to be successful
in passing the NCLEX-RN as a first time taker of the licensure exam. A graduate’s



success provides proof of minimal competency as a Registered Nurse. This directly
addresses the need for practicing nurses and the nursing shortage.

The NCLEX-RN Review Course is an intensive four-day classroom review and
instruction. NMJC will utilize this funding to pay student registration fees with a
national company that provides the course materials and instructor. The course is taught
by a qualified nursing faculty person brought to our campus by the company. The
instructor conducts a 32 hour course over four days. The comprehensive review covers all
major content areas of nursing. MEDS Publishing (the provider of the 2006 review
course) reports pass rates of first-time NCLEX exam takers at 98-99% consistently. The
course uses a three-step approach to NCLEX Exam success, so the graduate is guaranteed
the knowledge and confidence needed to pass the NCLEX the first time. The course
includes the new NCLEX Exam Test Plan and the alternate test item formats. When the
student is registered in the course, MEDS Publishing provides free and immediate online
access to a NCLEX-style question and answer drill programs to help start the review
process immediately. The student receives a free review book, NCLEX-RN Exam
Essentials Review.

NMIC utilized previous funding to provide the 2005 graduates with a review course with
great success. One hundred percent (100%) of the 2005 graduates passed the NCLEX-RN
exam as a first time taker and 100% of these graduates are employed as registered nurses
(RN). These are competent practicing nurses. The funding supported a live review
course in May 2006 for those graduates. The May 2006 graduates are waiting for
licensure test dates.



The funding will provide for 48 graduates to attend a Meds-Publishing NCLEX-RN
review course to be held on NMJC campus. Graduates attendance is mandatory for the
four day course. The course is tied to the student’s final nursing course grade and
successful completion of the program. The student transcript will not be released to the
Board of Nursing for eligibility to take the NCLEX-RN until completion of review
course. The tuition to attend review course is estimated at $400 per student for 48
graduates. The total request for the review course is $19,200.

Faculty Retention and Incentive Plan
Nursing Faculty Shortage and Turnover Rates
Faculty Retention Plan

The Faculty Retention Plan is a two-fold plan which includes a retention incentive
program and an incentive to promote student success on the licensure exam. The
retention program provides a financial bonus to the faculty member that remains
employed on a full-time basis from one academic year to the next. The faculty incentive
program provides a stipend to the nursing faculty members involved in the graduates’
success on the NCLEX-RN licensure exam. The funds provide a means of additional
support to the nursing faculty salaries through an incentive program. The payment
supplements the faculty members” salaries in participation in classroom, laboratory and
clinical instruction. This tiered system is based upon the graduates’ performance on the
NCLEX-RN as a first-time test taker. The higher the graduating classes pass rate on the
licensure exam the higher the incentive pay. This is a monetary program that will retain
qualified experienced nursing faculty in this time of a nursing faculty shortage.

A faculty member must complete his/her second year of teaching in the nursing program
to be eligible to receive the bonus/retention money. The amount of the award will be
based upon the percentage of students passing the NCLEX-RN licensure exam as a first
time test-taker. The pay increments will be based on an acceptable pass rate of 80% to
100% of the graduating class. The faculty award will be divided into two payments: first
payment awarded at the end of the fall semester and second payment awarded at the end
of the spring semester (retain faculty full academic year). An instructor not completing
the fall semester will not receive any bonus/retention award; and the instructor who does
not complete the spring semester will not receive the second half of the bonus/retention
award. This stipulation is a part of the retention plan.

The nursing program had two MSN faculty members resign for the academic year 2005-
2006. As a result of faculty turnover, the student seat available number was decreased to
forty at each level. It is difficult to maintain faculty longevity when the private sector
pays two times more in salary. The academic year 2006-2007, there are nine full-time
faculty members and the Director of Allied Health. Student seat availability is 48 at
Level I and 40 at Level I1. The faculty retention plan will supplement a faculty member’s
salary and provide an incentive to strive for student success in the classroom and clinical
setting.



The request for funding the Faculty Incentive - Retention Plan is monetary incentive
based on annual graduate NCLEX-RN pass rates and faculty retention for each academic
year of employment. The following is a description of the incentive and retention plan:

o incentive program based on pass rate increments (using total number of graduates
taking NCLEX-RN exam as 1 time test takers):

o funding request is based on the NCLEX-RN pass rates for the graduates of May 2008
class

o applies to the 9 full-time faculty members and the Director of Allied Health (10
employees)

o the following table explains the Nursing Faculty Incentive Plan:

NCLEX-RN Pass Rates Incentive
100% $ 5,000
99.9 - 95 % $ 4,500
94.9 - 90 % $ 4,000
89.9-85% $ 3,500
84.9-80% $ 3,000

The funding request is for the Faculty Incentive and Retention Plan applicable for
graduates of May 2008. The request is for $50,000 based on maximum payment and
100% retention and pass rates.




Allied Health Retention Specialist

The Allied Health Retention Specialist shall be responsible to the Director of Allied
Health. The duties and responsibilities of the Allied Health Retention Specialist shall be,
but not limited, to the following:

1.

2.
3. establish and maintain an orientation program for pre-nursing students and an

7.

8.

9.

10.

develop and maintain the Allied Health Guidance and Counseling program and
database developed on periodic assessment of student needs.
develop a network of student resources/referrals within our community.

informational assistance program(stress management, time management, study
skills) for students at varying stages of their studies, articulation, pre-
admittance, after acceptance, after exams, and/or before program completion,
develop and offer a crisis intervention service/referral for Allied Health
students.
counsel with students who request help with personal, social and educational
issues.
provide current information on issues relevant to students (health, social,
career, employment, family life).
maintain current information and knowledge about all aspects of each Allied
Health course and certification level.
maintain current information and knowledge about transfer and curriculum
requirements at other institutions.

coordinate or assist in the administration of required testing for Allied Health
students.

gather data, organize and conduct tracking/trending related to the Allied Health

program and student success (needs analysis, student profiles, and student

follow-up, graduation/attrition rates, TEAS Test results, NCLEX-RN & PN pass
rates).

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.
16.

17.

attend and/or prepare workshops, training courses, conferences related to
guidance and counseling and mental health for pre-nursing and nursing
students.

maintain a computer/paper Allied Health database (pre-nursing/pre-requisites;
EMT, CNA, and Nursing program; send letters of acceptance/admission, and
course requirements).

respond to and provide information (program brochures, mailings, telephone
inquiries) to any person interested in the Allied Health programs.

maintain a working list of current inquiries to the Allied Health programs and
perform follow-up calls/mailings to determine interest in programs.

conduct registration for students of the Allied Health programs.
maintain a waiting list for any and all courses as needed for the Allied Health
program (A & P, Nursing, CNA, admittance to the nursing program).
nothing contained herein shall limit the President in assigning the employee to
any of the various college activities for which he/she would be qualified in order
to meet the needs of New Mexico Junior College.



Qualifications:

1.

St L

et

8.

Bachelor’s degree from an accredited college or university in psychology,
education, counseling, career development or allied health care related field
required. Master’s degree preferred.

Excellent oral and written communication skills.

Computer literacy, with experience in Microsoft Office (word processing),
Excel and BANNER student information system is helpful,

Tutoring and/or teaching experience within the last five years,

Professional or Educational counseling experience required within last five
years.

Excellent interpersonal skills, including conflict management; organizational
and time management skills are required.

Demonstrated knowledge of study skills and learning strategies.

The request for funding is for an Allied Health Retention Specialist salary for 12 months

at $45,000



New Mexico Junior College

Nursing Program

Retention and Success Programs

Funding Request
Retention and Success Program Request

1. Faculty salary stipend for Total

Curriculum Support Learning

System (computerized tutoring)

$4000/yr for 10 faculty. $40,000
2. NCLEX-RN Live Review Course

48 RN graduates @ $400 per person $19,200

Total $19,200
3. Faculty Retention Incentive Plan

$5000 stipend for 10 faculty;

Total $50,000 $50,000
4. Allied Health Retention Specialist $45,000
TOTAL PROGRAMS $154,200




Program Expansion

I. Practical Nursing Program
for High School Students



Practical Nurse Program for Lea County High School students

The Practical Nurse (PN) program for high school students has both an immediate and a
long-term impact on the inadequate supply of nurses throughout the state. Albuquerque
Public Schools (APS) has been successful for 25 years using this approach to nursing
education, This is a ‘stand-alone’ PN program beginning the junior year continuing
throughout the summer and completing at graduation from high school. The curriculum
will be modeled according to the APS PN program.

The program PN curriculum will be submitted to the NM Board of Nursing for approval
during the spring of 2007 and ready for implementation during the fall of 2007. This
proposal is requesting funding for additional qualified faculty members (MSN) to
develop the PN program and begin course instruction in August 2007 with students
completing the PN program in May 2009. This program will admit an additional 16
students to the PN program. This approach focuses on expanding enrollment in the
nursing program which will create an increased number of nursing graduates in New
Mexico. The program will require two additional nursing faculty at an approximate salary
of $50,000 per person. The total request for initiation of a high school PN program is
$100,000.

Name of Program Request for Funds

High School PN Program

1. Two full-time nursing faculty to $ 100,000
develop and implement PN
program; salary range $34,000 —
$50,000 determined by experience




New Mexico Junior College

Funding Requests
2007-2008

Nursing Expansion
Retention and Success Programs
and

High School Practical Nursing
Program



NMJC Nursing Expansion
Requests

NMJC Nursing Program has adopted a programmatic approach for addressing the
statewide nursing shortage by concentrating on both the student and the faculty needs.
The request for $254,200 funding will continue to directly address the expansion of the
nursing program by seeking to retain successful nursing students, prepare the graduates to
pass the licensure exam, and hiring and retaining qualified nursing faculty.

Programs Request
Retention and Success Program $154,200
Expand Enrollment-HS PN $100,000

Program

TOTALS $254,200




NEW MEXICO JUNIOR COLLEGE

Office of the President

Memo
TO: New Mexico Junior College Board
FRO: Steve McCleery 2/
DATE:  August 10, 2006
RE: New Mexico Education Service Center — Bylaws

Attached is a copy of the New Mexico Education Service Center Bylaws. You
approved the NMESC Operating Agreement at the October 20, 2005 Board meeting.
As called for in the MOU, Santa Fe Community College, Northern New Mexico
College, and New Mexico Junior College finalized the draft of the bylaws at the May
meeting. | am recommending Board approval of the document.

Thank you for your consideration!

5317 LOVINGTON HIGHWAY » HOBBS, NEW MEXICO 88240 « (505) 392-5018 » fax 392-2526



BYLAWS
OF THE
NEW MEXICO EDUCATION SERVICES CENTER

These Bylaws are made for the purpose of detailing the expectations and understandings
of the council to manage the affairs of the New Mexico Education Services Center (“NMESC”),
an entity formed by New Mexico Junior College (“NMJC”), Northern New Mexico College
(“*NNMC”), and Santa Fe Community College (“SFCC”), pursuant to Sections 11-1-1 through
11-1-7 NMSA 1978. The Governing Board’s of NMJC, NNMC, and SFCC each will approve
these Bylaws.

ARTICLE ]
DEFINITIONS

Capitalized terms shall have the definitions assigned in the prefatory paragraph above in
this section. In addition, capitalized terms not defined in this section shall have the meanings
assigned in the Joint Powers Agreement dated March 6, 2006, by and among NMJC, NNMC,
and SFCC unless the context clearly requires otherwise.

“Member” means each entity noted above, and any other entity that may, in the future be
accepted for membership to be a member of the New Mexico Education Services Center
Council.

ARTICLE 11
OPERATIONAL PHILOSOPHY

The NMESC shall be operated (i) in an efficient, cost-effective manner in order to
maximize the benefits of the NMESC to students, employees and other authorized beneficiaries
and (ii) consistently with the Joint Powers Agreement (JPA) and the mission statements of all
Parties to the Joint Powers Agreement.

ARTICLE 111
CONDUCT OF BUSINESS

A. Powers. The Council shall manage the affairs of the NMESC and may take any
and all actions necessary or convenient to carry out the powers authorized by or consistent with
the Joint Powers Agreement.

B. Quorum. All of the Members of the Council shall constitute a quorum. All
Members of the Council shall be entitled to vote in connection with any action of the Council,
except as outlined in Article X of these Bylaws.

C. Actions. Actions of the Council shall be authorized by a vote of all Members of
the Council, except as outlined in Article X of these Bylaws

S:'NM Education Services CtrBylaws2-Educ Center Rev. 4.06.doc [ &T06 cp



D. Officers

1. President. The President of the Council shall preside at meetings of the
Council. The President shall prepare an agenda for each meeting.

2. Vice President. In the President’s absence, the Vice-President shall
perform the duties of the President.

3. Secretary/Treasurer. The Secretary/Treasurer shall keep or cause to be
kept a book of minutes of all meetings of the Council at the principal office of the NMESC or at
such other location as the Council may authorize. The Secretary/Treasurer shall attest the
signature of the presiding officer on documents and instruments executed by the Council, shall
be responsible for issuing notices of meetings and other notices provided by the Council, shall be
responsible for appropriate distribution of Council meeting agendas, and shall otherwise be
responsible for documenting the actions and proceedings of the Council. The
Secretary/Treasurer shall, in conjunction with the fiscal agent, maintain adequate and correct
accounts of Council funds, shall be responsible for presenting the financial reports to the
Council, shall be responsible for signing or co-signing an authorization to prepare and make
payments on behalf of the Council, and shall be responsible for performing such other duties as
may be assigned by the Council.

E. Committees. The Council may appoint committees from time to time as may be
necessary or convenient to carry out the Council’s powers, provided that such committees must
consist of at least two Members. Actions requiring Council approval shall not be delegated to
committees.

F. Delegation of Certain Authority. The Council may delegate to individual
Members authority to execute instruments, endorse checks and expend funds of the Council for
any purpose not inconsistent with the Joint Powers Agreement.

G. Compensation. No Member of the Council shall be compensated for service
thereon. Any reimbursement of expenses shall be based upon actual expenses or shall be
disbursed in accordance with the Per Diem Reimbursement Act or implementing regulations, if a
budget to pay for such expenses has been approved by the Council.

H. Anti-Nepotism. No Member of the Council shall be employed in the operation of
the New Mexico Education Services Center. Members shall not approve the employment of any
person who is the mother, mother-in-law, father, father-in-law, son, son-in-law, daughter, or
daughter-in-law of a Member. No Member shall directly or indirectly sell or be a party to any
transaction to sell equipment, supplies, insurance or services under contract to the New Mexico
Education Services Center, except as provided in the New Mexico Procurement Code, NMSA
1978 §§ 13-1-1, et seq.

ARTICLE IV
OFFICES

The principal offices for the transaction of business of the Council shall be President’s
Office Complex at NMJC, NNMC and SFCC, or as may be changed in the future. The Members
of the Council are hereby granted authority to change the place of the principal office of their

$:\NM Education Services Ctr\Bylaws2-Educ Center Rev. 4.06.doc 2 Rev. 4.19.06cg



campus to another location and to hold meetings of the Council at any location deemed
appropriate by the President of NMJC, NNMC or SFCC.

ARTICLE V
COUNCIL MEETINGS

A. Place of Meetings. Meetings of the Council shall be held at the place and time set
forth in a meeting notice.

B. Meetings.
1. Regularly Scheduled Meetings.

a. Notices of regularly scheduled meetings shall be provided in
writing to each Member at least ten (10) days in advance of each
meeting.

b. Annual Meetings; Purpose of meetings in first year of operation.

The Council shall adopt an annual meeting schedule at the first
Council meeting held in each calendar year. The first annual
meeting schedule shall provide that meetings shall be held for the
following purposes:

i. At an initial meeting to be held on or before June 21, 2006, for
the following purposes:

" elect officers;

*  adopt organizational documents for the Council, including
Bylaws, an open meetings resolution and a schedule of
additional meetings to be held in connection with the
Council’s first full year of existence and operation;

» ratify certain actions already taken; and

* select a fiscal agent.

ii.  Adopt an Open Meetings Resolution.
iii. At subsequent meetings to take such additional action as may
be necessary or desirable as authorized by or not inconsistent

with the Joint Powers Agreement.

iv.  The Board shall meet at least annually to adopt a budget.

2. Special Meetings. Notices of special meetings shall be provided in writing
to each Member, per the approved Open Meetings Resolution language.
3. Emergency Meetings. Notices of emergency meetings shall be provided

as far in advance as reasonably possible, in writing if possible, to each Member. Notices of
emergency meetings shall be provided, per the approved Open Meetings Resolution language.

S:\NM Education Services Cir'Bylaws2-Educ Center Rev. 4.06.doc 3 6706 cg



4. Public Meetings. Meetings of the Council are open to the public. Notice
of meetings shall be provided to the public as set forth in the Council’s Open Meetings
Resolution, which shall be annually reviewed and approved.

ARTICLE VI
COUNCIL RECORDS

The Council shall maintain adequate records and documentation of its business and
actions. The Council’s public records may be inspected as provided in the Inspection of Public
Records Act, NMSA 1978 §§ 14-2-1, et seq., by contacting the NMESC’s Council
Secretary/Treasurer of record.

ARTICLE VII
FISCAL MANAGEMENT

The fiscal agent for the NMESC shall be Santa Fe Community College, which shall:

A, purchase all equipment, goods and services in compliance with the New Mexico
Procurement Code. The fiscal agent is authorized to prepare and publish notice of bids, to open
bids, and to recommend the acceptance or rejection of bids to the Council. Payments shall be
made consistent with Article 111.D.3 of this document.

B. present to the Council, at a regular meeting of the Council prior to the end of each
Fiscal Year, a recommendation for an operating budget for the following Fiscal Year. Based
upon the operating budget the Council shall establish the percentage of Revenue to be transferred
by each party to the Joint Powers Agreement to the Revenue Account. The fiscal agent shall
oversee the approved budget and shall report to the Council the financial status of all accounts
established on behalf of the Council and summarize all expenditures and revenues associated
with each account at each regularly scheduled meeting of the Council.

ARTICLE VIl
ALLOCATION OF EXPENSES
A. At a regular meeting of the Council prior to the end of each Fiscal Year:
1. the fiscal agent shall recommend to the Council and the Council shall

approve an operating budget for the following Fiscal Year. The operating budget shall include
line items for Repair and Replacement Expenses, Maintenance and Custodial Services Expenses,
Utility Expenses, Personnel Services Expenses, if any, Non-Personnel Services, if any, Capital
Projects, if any, and Administrative Expenses.

2. the Council shall determine the percentage of Revenue to be transferred by
each Party to the Joint Powers Agreement to the Revenue Account for the payment of Expenses
contained in the operating budget. Each Party shali transfer its share of Revenue to the fiscal
agent for deposit into the Revenue Account within ten (10) business days after the date of the last
regular meeting of the Council prior to the end of each Fiscal Year.

5:'NM Education Services Cir\Bylaws2-Educ Center Rev. 4.06.doc 4 Rev. 4.19.06cg



B. The Revenue deposited into the Revenue Account, together with any investment
income, shall be used to pay Expenses of the NMESC.

C. The fiscal agent shall deposit or cause to be deposited Revenue from the Revenue
Account to the Repair and Replacement Account, the Maintenance and Custodial Services
Account, the Utility Account, the Personnel Services Account, if any, the Non-Personnel
Services Account, if any, and the Administrative Cost Center Account, the amount budgeted for
each type of Expense in the operating budget.

D. The fiscal agent shall pay all expenses in a timely manner, per Article I11.D.3.

ARTICLE X
ADDITION OF MEMBERS; CONTRIBUTIONS TO MEMBERSHIP

Secondary and post-secondary public educational entities, which have entered into service
contracts with the council and are not in default, may apply for membership on the Council in
accordance with the following categories. Membership requests from qualifying applicants will
be considered at a Council’s regular meeting. Membership shall be approved by a majority vote
that shall include approving by unanimous votes of the original members: NMIC, , NNMC, and
SFCC in order to be effective.

A. Full Membership. Full Membership rights are not attained until full membership
payments for Year’s One and Two have been made. An exception is made for the
original members.

1. Year One. Full Membership for other than the three original NMESC
members requires an initial non-refundable membership contribution of
$20,000, or as amended by the three (3) original members to offset the cost
of the NMESC server and initial start-up costs incurred by the original
members.

a. The initial contribution (Year One Contribution) shall be made within ten
(10) business days of the new fiscal year, or upon being accepted for
membership. The Year One Contribution shall be deposited in the
NMESC Membership Fund.

b. In addition, the new member shall be assessed an amount equal to the
highest assessment paid by any original member for support of the annual
operating costs of the NMESC, and an amount equal to the highest
assessment paid by any original member into the NMESC Equipment
Renewal and Replacement Sinking Fund and shall contribute such amount
to such fund no later than the end of Year One.

¢. New members shall attend Council meetings.

2. Year Two. In addition to the regular assessments paid by other full members
new members in Year Two shall contribute $10,000, or as amended by the
three (3) original members to the NMESC Membership Fund and will be
charged a fee (Data Fee) for the projected/or actual costs and expenses of
integrating the new member’s financial, student, employee data into the
NMESC database. Such fee shall be proportional to the compatibility of the

S:\NM Education Services Cir'Bylaws2-Educ Center Rev. 4.06.doc L TG cg



new members coding conventions with those used by NMESC. New
members may exercise voting rights and all other rights of membership and
shall be subject to all obligations of full membership in Year Two and
thereafter.

B. Partial Membership. Partial membership does not include voting rights. Applicants
approved for partial membership shall pay an initial contribution to the NMESC
Membership Fund in Year One within ten (10) business days of the new fiscal year.
Partial members shall pay a Data Fee upon completion of the integration of such
member’s data, but no later than the close of the fiscal year of Year One. Thereafter,
partial members shall pay a negotiated fee for continued membership.

C. NMESC Membership Fund. Funds paid into the NMESC Membership Fund shall be
distributed equally to the three (3) original members at the end of each fiscal year
unless the original three (3) members unanimously approve an alternate distribution.

ARTICLE XI
AMENDMENT OF BYLAWS

A. Amendment. These Bylaws may be amended by majority vote of the Council,
from time to time, unless elsewhere in these Bylaws the original three (3) members are assigned
that right, in any manner not inconsistent with the Joint Powers Agreement.

B. Record of Amendment. Any amendment to these Bylaws shall be included with
the original Bylaws, along with the record of action taken by the Council to enact such
amendment, per Article VI.

THESE BYLAWS ARE HEREBY ADOPTED as the Bylaws of the New Mexico Education
Services Center by the undersigned, being the original NMESC Members of the New
Mexico Education Services Center Council, on this 18™ day of April, 2006.

By:

President and Council Member

S:'\NM Education Services Cir\Bylaws2-Educ Center Rev. 4.06.doc t Rev. 4.19.06¢cg



BYLAWS
OF THE
NEW MEXICO EDUCATION SERVICES CENTER

These Bylaws are made for the purpose of detailing the expectations and understandings
of the council to manage the affairs of the New Mexico Education Services Center (“NMESC”),
an entity formed by New Mexico Junior College (“NMJC”), Northern New Mexico College
(“NNMC”), and Santa Fe Community College (“SFCC™), pursuant to Sections 11-1-1 through
11-1-7 NMSA 1978. The Governing Board’s of NMJC, NNMC, and SFCC each will approve
these Bylaws.

ARTICLE ]
DEFINITIONS

Capitalized terms shall have the definitions assigned in the prefatory paragraph above in
this section. In addition, capitalized terms not defined in this section shall have the meanings
assigned in the Joint Powers Agreement dated March 6, 2006, by and among NMIJC, NNMC,
and SFCC unless the context clearly requires otherwise.

“Member” means each entity noted above, and any other entity that may, in the future be
accepted for membership to be a member of the New Mexico Education Services Center
Council.

ARTICLE 11
OPERATIONAL PHILOSOPHY

The NMESC shall be operated (i) in an efficient, cost-effective manner in order to
maximize the benefits of the NMESC to students, employees and other authorized beneficiaries
and (i1} consistently with the Joint Powers Agreement (JPA) and the mission statements of all
Parties to the Joint Powers Agreement,

ARTICLE 111
CONDUCT OF BUSINESS

A. Powers. The Council shall manage the affairs of the NMESC and may take any
and all actions necessary or convenient to carry out the powers authorized by or consistent with
the Joint Powers Agreement.

B. Quorum. All of the Members of the Council shall constitute a quorum. All
Members of the Council shall be entitled to vote in connection with any action of the Council,
except as outlined in Article X of these Bylaws.

C. Actions. Actions of the Council shall be authorized by a vote of all Members of
the Council, except as outlined in Article X of these Bylaws

§:\NM Education Services Cti\Bylaws2-Educ Center Rev. 4.06.doc [ 706 cp



D. Officers

1. President. The President of the Council shall preside at meetings of the
Council. The President shall prepare an agenda for each meeting.

2. Vice President. In the President’s absence, the Vice-President shall
perform the duties of the President.

3. Secretary/Treasurer. The Secretary/Treasurer shall keep or cause to be

kept a book of minutes of all meetings of the Council at the principal office of the NMESC or at
such other location as the Council may authorize. The Secretary/Treasurer shall attest the
signature of the presiding officer on documents and instruments executed by the Council, shall
be responsible for issuing notices of meetings and other notices provided by the Council, shall be
responsible for appropriate distribution of Council meeting agendas, and shall otherwise be
responsible for documenting the actions and proceedings of the Council. The
Secretary/Treasurer shall, in conjunction with the fiscal agent, maintain adequate and correct
accounts of Council funds, shall be responsible for presenting the financial reports to the
Council, shall be responsible for signing or co-signing an authorization to prepare and make
payments on behalf of the Council, and shall be responsible for performing such other duties as
may be assigned by the Council.

E. Committees. The Council may appoint committees from time to time as may be
necessary or convenient to carry out the Council’s powers, provided that such committees must
consist of at least two Members. Actions requiring Council approval shall not be delegated to
committees.

F. Delegation of Certain Authority. The Council may delegate to individual
Members authority to execute instruments, endorse checks and expend funds of the Council for
any purpose not inconsistent with the Joint Powers Agreement.

G. Compensation. No Member of the Council shall be compensated for service
thereon. Any reimbursement of expenses shall be based upon actual expenses or shall be
disbursed in accordance with the Per Diem Reimbursement Act or implementing regulations, if a
budget to pay for such expenses has been approved by the Council.

H. Anti-Nepotism. No Member of the Council shall be employed in the operation of
the New Mexico Education Services Center. Members shall not approve the employment of any
person who is the mother, mother-in-law, father, father-in-law, son, son-in-law, daughter, or
daughter-in-law of a Member. No Member shall directly or indirectly sell or be a party to any
transaction to sell equipment, supplies, insurance or services under contract to the New Mexico
Education Services Center, except as provided in the New Mexico Procurement Code, NMSA
1978 §§ 13-1-1, et seq.

ARTICLE 1V
OFFICES

The principal offices for the transaction of business of the Council shall be President’s
Office Complex at NMJC, NNMC and SFCC, or as may be changed in the future. The Members
of the Council are hereby granted authority to change the place of the principal office of their

$:\NM Education Services Ctri\Bylaws2-Educ Center Rev. 4.06.doc 2 Rev. 4.19.06cg



campus to another location and to hold meetings of the Council at any location deemed
appropriate by the President of NMJC, NNMC or SFCC.

ARTICLE VY
COUNCIL MEETINGS

A. Place of Meetings. Meetings of the Council shall be held at the place and time set
forth in a meeting notice.

B. Meetings.
1. Regularly Scheduled Meetings.

a. Notices of regularly scheduled meetings shall be provided in
writing to each Member at least ten (10) days in advance of each
meeting.

b. Annual Meetings; Purpose of meetings in first year of operation.

The Council shall adopt an annual meeting schedule at the first
Council meeting held in each calendar year. The first annual
meeting schedule shall provide that meetings shall be held for the
following purposes:

1. At an initial meeting to be held on or before June 21, 2006, for
the following purposes:

= elect officers;

*  adopt organizational documents for the Council, including
Bylaws, an open meetings resoiution and a schedule of
additional meetings to be held in connection with the
Council’s first full year of existence and operation;

* ratify certain actions already taken; and

= select a fiscal agent.

ii.  Adopt an Open Meetings Resolution.
ii. At subsequent meetings to take such additional action as may
be necessary or desirable as authorized by or not inconsistent

with the Joint Powers Agreement.

iv.  The Board shall meet at least annually to adopt a budget.

2. Special Meetings. Notices of special meetings shall be provided in writing
to each Member, per the approved Open Meetings Resolution language.
3. Emergency Meetings. Notices of emergency meetings shall be provided

as far in advance as reasonably possible, in writing if possible, to each Member. Notices of
emergency meetings shall be provided, per the approved Open Meetings Resolution language.

$:'"NM Education Services Cir\Bylaws2-Educ Center Rev. 4.06.doc 3 6/ 7106 cp



4, Public Meetings. Meetings of the Council are open to the public. Notice
of meetings shall be provided to the public as set forth in the Council’s Open Meetings
Resolution, which shall be annually reviewed and approved.

ARTICLE VI
COUNCIL RECORDS

The Council shall maintain adequate records and documentation of its business and
actions. The Council’s public records may be inspected as provided in the Inspection of Public
Records Act, NMSA 1978 §§ 14-2-1, et seq., by contacting the NMESC’s Council
Secretary/Treasurer of record.

ARTICLE VII
FISCAL MANAGEMENT

The fiscal agent for the NMESC shall be Santa Fe Community College, which shall:

A. purchase all equipment, goods and services in compliance with the New Mexico
Procurement Code. The fiscal agent is authorized to prepare and publish notice of bids, to open
bids, and to recommend the acceptance or rejection of bids to the Council. Payments shall be
made consistent with Article I11.D.3 of this document.

B. present to the Council, at a regular meeting of the Council prior to the end of each
Fiscal Year, a recommendation for an operating budget for the following Fiscal Year. Based
upon the operating budget the Council shall establish the percentage of Revenue to be transferred
by each party to the Joint Powers Agreement to the Revenue Account. The fiscal agent shall
oversee the approved budget and shall report to the Council the financial status of all accounts
established on behalf of the Council and summarize all expenditures and revenues associated
with each account at each regularly scheduled meeting of the Council.

ARTICLE VIII
ALLOCATION OF EXPENSES
A. At a regular meeting of the Council prior to the end of each Fiscal Year:
1. the fiscal agent shall recommend to the Council and the Council shall

approve an operating budget for the following Fiscal Year. The operating budget shall include
line items for Repair and Replacement Expenses, Maintenance and Custodial Services Expenses,
Utility Expenses, Personnel Services Expenses, if any, Non-Personnel Services, if any, Capital
Projects, if any, and Administrative Expenses.

2. the Council shall determine the percentage of Revenue to be transferred by
each Party to the Joint Powers Agreement to the Revenue Account for the payment of Expenses
contained in the operating budget. Each Party shall transfer its share of Revenue to the fiscal
agent for deposit into the Revenue Account within ten (10) business days after the date of the last
regular meeting of the Council prior to the end of each Fiscal Year.

S:\NM Education Services Ctr\Bylaws2-Educ Center Rev. 4.06.doc 4 Rev. 4.19.06cg



B. The Revenue deposited into the Revenue Account, together with any investment
income, shall be used to pay Expenses of the NMESC.

C. The fiscal agent shall deposit or cause to be deposited Revenue from the Revenue
Account to the Repair and Replacement Account, the Maintenance and Custodial Services
Account, the Utility Account, the Personnel Services Account, if any, the Non-Personnel
Services Account, if any, and the Administrative Cost Center Account, the amount budgeted for
each type of Expense in the operating budget.

D. The fiscal agent shall pay all expenses in a timely manner, per Article IIL.D.3.

ARTICLE X
ADDITION OF MEMBERS; CONTRIBUTIONS TO MEMBERSHIP

Secondary and post-secondary public educational entities, which have entered into service
contracts with the council and are not in default, may apply for membership on the Council in
accordance with the following categories. Membership requests from qualifying applicants will
be considered at a Council’s regular meeting. Membership shall be approved by a majority vote
that shall include approving by unanimous votes of the original members: NMIC, , NNMC, and
SFCC in order to be effective,

A.  Full Membership. Full Membership rights are not attained until full membership
payments for Year’s One and Two have been made. An exception is made for the
original members.

1. Year One. Full Membership for other than the three original NMESC
members requires an initial non-refundable membership contribution of
$20,000, or as amended by the three (3) original members to offset the cost
of the NMESC server and initial start-up costs incurred by the original
members.

a. The initial contribution (Year One Contribution) shall be made within ten
(10) business days of the new fiscal year, or upon being accepted for
membership. The Year One Contribution shall be deposited in the
NMESC Membership Fund.

b. In addition, the new member shall be assessed an amount equal to the
highest assessment paid by any original member for support of the annual
operating costs of the NMESC, and an amount equal to the highest
assessment paid by any original member into the NMESC Equipment
Renewal and Replacement Sinking Fund and shall contribute such amount
to such fund no later than the end of Year One.

c. New members shall attend Council meetings.

2. Year Two. In addition to the regular assessments paid by other full members
new members in Year Two shall contribute $10,000, or as amended by the
three (3) original members to the NMESC Membership Fund and will be
charged a fee (Data Fee) for the projected/or actual costs and expenses of
integrating the new member’s financial, student, employee data into the
NMESC database. Such fee shall be proportional to the compatibility of the

§:\NM Education Services Cin\Bylaws2-Educ Center Rev. 4.06 doc 5 6706 cg



new members coding conventions with those used by NMESC. New
members may exercise voting rights and all other rights of membership and
shall be subject to all obligations of full membership in Year Two and
thereafter.

B. Partial Membership. Partial membership does not include voting rights. Applicants
approved for partial membership shall pay an initial contribution to the NMESC
Membership Fund in Year One within ten (10) business days of the new fiscal year.
Partial members shall pay a Data Fee upon completion of the integration of such
member’s data, but no later than the close of the fiscal year of Year One. Thereafter,
partial members shall pay a negotiated fee for continued membership.

C. NMESC Membership Fund. Funds paid into the NMESC Membership Fund shall be
distributed equally to the three (3) original members at the end of each fiscal year
unless the original three (3) members unanimously approve an alternate distribution.

ARTICLE XI
AMENDMENT OF BYLAWS

A. Amendment. These Bylaws may be amended by majority vote of the Council,
from time to time, unless elsewhere in these Bylaws the original three (3) members are assigned
that right, in any manner not inconsistent with the Joint Powers Agreement.

B. Record of Amendment. Any amendment to these Bylaws shall be included with
the original Bylaws, along with the record of action taken by the Council to enact such
amendment, per Article VL.

THESE BYLAWS ARE HEREBY ADOPTED as the Bylaws of the New Mexico Education
Services Center by the undersigned, being the original NMESC Members of the New
Mexico Education Services Center Council, on this 18" day of April, 2006.

By:

President and Council Member

S:'NM Education Services Ctr\Bylaws2-Educ Center Rev. 4.06.doc & Rev. 4.19.06cg



BYLAWS
OF THE
NEW MEXICO EDUCATION SERVICES CENTER

These Bylaws are made for the purpose of detailing the expectations and understandings
of the council to manage the affairs of the New Mexico Education Services Center (“NMESC”),
an entity formed by New Mexico Junior College (“NMIJC™), Northern New Mexico College
(*NNMC”), and Santa Fe Community College (“SFCC”), pursuant to Sections 11-1-1 through
11-1-7 NMSA 1978. The Governing Board’s of NMJC, NNMC, and SFCC each will approve
these Bylaws.

ARTICLE1
DEFINITIONS

Capitalized terms shall have the definitions assigned in the prefatory paragraph above in
this section. In addition, capitalized terms not defined in this section shall have the meanings
assigned in the Joint Powers Agreement dated March 6, 2006, by and among NMIC, NNMC,
and SFCC unless the context clearly requires otherwise.

“Member” means each entity noted above, and any other entity that may, in the future be
accepted for membership to be a member of the New Mexico Education Services Center
Council.

ARTICLE 11
OPERATIONAL PHILOSOPHY

The NMESC shall be operated (i) in an efficient, cost-effective manner in order to
maximize the benefits of the NMESC to students, employees and other authorized beneficiaries
and (ii) consistently with the Joint Powers Agreement (JPA) and the mission statements of all
Parties to the Joint Powers Agreement.

ARTICLE 111
CONDUCT OF BUSINESS

A. Powers. The Council shall manage the affairs of the NMESC and may take any
and all actions necessary or convenient to carry out the powers authorized by or consistent with
the Joint Powers Agreement.

B. Quorum. All of the Members of the Council shall constitute a quorum. All
Members of the Council shall be entitled to vote in connection with any action of the Council,
except as outlined in Article X of these Bylaws.

C. Actions. Actions of the Council shall be authorized by a vote of all Members of
the Council, except as outlined in Article X of these Bylaws

T:\NM Education Services Ctr\Bylaws2-Educ Center Rev. 4.06.doc [ 6/7/06 cg



D. Officers

1. President. The President of the Council shall preside at meetings of the
Council. The President shall prepare an agenda for each meeting.

2. Vice President. In the President’s absence, the Vice-President shall
perform the duties of the President. .

3. Secretary/Treasurer. The Secretary/Treasurer shall keep or cause to be
kept a book of minutes of all meetings of the Council at the principal office of the NMESC or at
such other location as the Council may authorize. The Secretary/Treasurer shall attest the
signature of the presiding officer on documents and instruments executed by the Council, shall
be responsible for issuing notices of meetings and other notices provided by the Council, shall be
responstble for appropriate distribution of Council meeting agendas, and shall otherwise be
responsible for documenting the actions and proceedings of the Council. The
Secretary/Treasurer shall, in conjunction with the fiscal agent, maintain adequate and correct
accounts of Council funds, shall be responsible for presenting the financial reports to the
Council, shall be responsible for signing or co-signing an authorization to prepare and make
payments on behalf of the Council, and shall be responsible for performing such other duties as
may be assigned by the Council.

E. Committees. The Council may appoint committees from time to time as may be
necessary or convenient to carry out the Council’s powers, provided that such committees must
consist of at least two Members. Actions requiring Council approval shall not be delegated to
committees.

F. Delegation of Certain Authority. The Council may delegate to individual
Members authority to execute instruments, endorse checks and expend funds of the Council for
any purpose not inconsistent with the Joint Powers Agreement.

G. Compensation. No Member of the Council shall be compensated for service
thereon. Any reimbursement of expenses shall be based upon actual expenses or shall be
disbursed in accordance with the Per Diem Reimbursement Act or implementing regulations, if a
budget to pay for such expenses has been approved by the Council.

H. Anti-Nepotism. No Member of the Council shall be employed in the operation of
the New Mexico Education Services Center. Members shall not approve the employment of any
person who is the mother, mother-in-law, father, father-in-law, son, son-in-law, daughter, or
daughter-in-law of a Member. No Member shall directly or indirectly sell or be a party to any
transaction to sell equipment, supplies, insurance or services under contract to the New Mexico
Education Services Center, except as provided in the New Mexico Procurement Code, NMSA
1978 §§ 13-1-1, et seq.

ARTICLE 1V
OFFICES

The principal offices for the transaction of business of the Council shall be President’s
Office Complex at NMJC, NNMC and SFCC, or as may be changed in the future. The Members
of the Council are hereby granted authority to change the place of the principal office of their

T:\NM Education Services Cir\Bylaws2-Educ Center Rev. 4.06.doc 2 Rev. 4.19.0cg



campus to another location and to hold meetings of the Council at any location deemed
appropriate by the President of NMJC, NNMC or SFCC.

ARTICLE V
COUNCIL MEETINGS

A. Place of Meetings. Meetings of the Council shall be held at the place and time set
forth in a meeting notice.

B. Meetings.
1. Regularly Scheduled Meetings.

a. Notices of regularly scheduled meetings shall be provided in
writing to each Member at least ten (10) days in advance of each
meeting.

b. Annual Meetings; Purpose of meetings in first year of operation.

The Council shall adopt an annual meeting schedule at the first
Council meeting held in each calendar year. The first annual
meeting schedule shall provide that meetings shall be held for the
following purposes:

1. At an initial meeting to be held on or before June 21, 2006, for
the following purposes:

» elect officers;

= adopt organizational documents for the Council, including
Bylaws, an open meetings resolution and a schedule of
additional meetings to be held in connection with the
Council’s first full year of existence and operation;

" ratify certain actions already taken; and

» select a fiscal agent.

ii.  Adopt an Open Meetings Resolution.
iii. At subsequent meetings to take such additional action as may
be necessary or desirable as authorized by or not inconsistent

with the Joint Powers Agreement.

iv.  The Board shall meet at least annually to adopt a budget.

2. Special Meetings. Notices of special meetings shall be provided in writing
to each Member, per the approved Open Meetings Resolution language.
3. Emergency Meetings. Notices of emergency meetings shall be provided

as far in advance as reasonably possible, in writing if possible, to each Member. Notices of
emergency meetings shall be provided, per the approved Open Meetings Resolution language.

S:\NM Education Services Ctr\Bylaws2-Educ Center Rev. 4.06.doc 3 &/7106 cg



4. Public Meetings. Meetings of the Council are open to the public. Notice
of meetings shall be provided to the public as set forth in the Council’s Open Meetings
Resolution, which shall be annually reviewed and approved.

ARTICLE V1
COUNCIL RECORDS

The Council shall maintain adequate records and documentation of its business and
actions. The Council’s public records may be inspected as provided in the Inspection of Public
Records Act, NMSA 1978 §§ 14-2-1, et seq., by contacting the NMESC’s Council
Secretary/Treasurer of record.

ARTICLE VII
FISCAL MANAGEMENT

The fiscal agent for the NMESC shall be Santa Fe Community College, which shall:

A. purchase all equipment, goods and services in compliance with the New Mexico
Procurement Code. The fiscal agent is authorized to prepare and publish notice of bids, to open
bids, and to recommend the acceptance or rejection of bids to the Council. Payments shall be
made consistent with Article lI1.D.3 of this document.

B. present to the Council, at a regular meeting of the Council prior to the end of each
Fiscal Year, a recommendation for an operating budget for the following Fiscal Year. Based
upon the operating budget the Council shall establish the percentage of Revenue to be transferred
by each party to the Joint Powers Agreement to the Revenue Account. The fiscal agent shall
oversee the approved budget and shall report to the Council the financial status of all accounts
established on behalf of the Council and summarize all expenditures and revenues associated
with each account at each regularly scheduled meeting of the Council.

ARTICLE VIII
ALLOCATION OF EXPENSES
A. At a regular meeting of the Council prior to the end of each Fiscal Year:
1. the fiscal agent shall recommend to the Council and the Council shall

approve an operating budget for the following Fiscal Year. The operating budget shall include
line items for Repair and Replacement Expenses, Maintenance and Custodial Services Expenses,
Utility Expenses, Personnel Services Expenses, if any, Non-Personnel Services, if any, Capital
Projects, if any, and Administrative Expenses.

2. the Council shall determine the percentage of Revenue to be transferred by
each Party to the Joint Powers Agreement to the Revenue Account for the payment of Expenses
contained in the operating budget. Each Party shall transfer its share of Revenue to the fiscal
agent for deposit into the Revenue Account within ten (10) business days after the date of the last
regular meeting of the Council prior to the end of each Fiscal Year.

T:ANM Education Services Ctr\Bylaws2-Educ Center Rev. 4.06.doc 4 Rev. 4.19.06cg



B. The Revenue deposited into the Revenue Account, together with any investment
income, shall be used to pay Expenses of the NMESC.

C. The fiscal agent shall deposit or cause to be deposited Revenue from the Revenue
Account to the Repair and Replacement Account, the Maintenance and Custodial Services
Account, the Utility Account, the Personnel Services Account, if any, the Non-Personnel
Services Account, if any, and the Administrative Cost Center Account, the amount budgeted for
each type of Expense in the operating budget.

D. The fiscal agent shall pay all expenses in a timely manner, per Article 111.D.3.

ARTICLE X
ADDITION OF MEMBERS; CONTRIBUTIONS TO MEMBERSHIP

Secondary and post-secondary public educational entities, which have entered into service
contracts with the council and are not in default, may apply for membership on the Council in
accordance with the following categories. Membership requests from qualifying applicants will
be considered at a Council’s regular meeting. Membership shall be approved by a majority vote
that shall include approving by unanimous votes of the original members: NMJC, , NNMC, and
SFCC in order to be effective,

A.  Full Membership. Full Membership rights are not attained until full membership
payments for Year’s One and Two have been made. An exception is made for the
original members,

1. Year One. Full Membership for other than the three original NMESC
members requires an initial non-refundable membership contribution of
$20,000, or as amended by the three (3) original members to offset the cost
of the NMESC server and initial start-up costs incurred by the original
members.

a. The initial contribution (Year One Contribution) shall be made within ten
(10) business days of the new fiscal year, or upon being accepted for
membership. The Year One Contribution shall be deposited in the
NMESC Membership Fund.

b. In addition, the new member shall be assessed an amount equal to the
highest assessment paid by any original member for support of the annual
operating costs of the NMESC, and an amount equal to the highest
assessment paid by any original member into the NMESC Equipment
Renewal and Replacement Sinking Fund and shall contribute such amount
to such fund no later than the end of Year One,

c¢. New members shall attend Council meetings.

2. Year Two. In addition to the regular assessments paid by other full members
new members in Year Two shall contribute $10,000, or as amended by the
three (3) original members to the NMESC Membership Fund and will be
charged a fee (Data Fee) for the projected/or actual costs and expenses of
integrating the new member’s financial, student, employee data into the
NMESC database. Such fee shall be proportional to the compatibility of the

T:ANM Education Services Cii\Bylaws2-Educ Center Rev. 4.06.doc 5 G706 cg



new members coding conventions with those used by NMESC. New
members may exercise voting rights and all other rights of membership and
shall be subject to all obligations of full membership in Year Two and
thereafter.

B. Partial Membership. Partial membership does not include voting rights. Applicants
approved for partial membership shall pay an initial contribution to the NMESC
Membership Fund in Year One within ten (10) business days of the new fiscal year.
Partial members shall pay a Data Fee upon completion of the integration of such
member’s data, but no later than the close of the fiscal year of Year One. Thereafter,
partial members shall pay a negotiated fee for continued membership.

C. NMESC Membership Fund. Funds paid into the NMESC Membership Fund shall be
distributed equally to the three (3) original members at the end of each fiscal year
unless the original three (3) members unanimously approve an alternate distribution.

ARTICLE XI
AMENDMENT OF BYLAWS

A. Amendment. These Bylaws may be amended by majority vote of the Council,
from time to time, unless elsewhere in these Bylaws the original three (3) members are assigned
that right, in any manner not inconsistent with the Joint Powers Agreement.

B. Record of Amendment. Any amendment to these Bylaws shall be included with
the original Bylaws, along with the record of action taken by the Council to enact such
amendment, per Article VL.

THESE BYLAWS ARE HEREBY ADOPTED as the Bylaws of the New Mexico Education
Services Center by the undersigned, being the original NMESC Members of the New
Mexico Education Services Center Council, on this 18" day of April, 2006.

By:

resident and Council Member

T:ANM Education Services Ctr\Bylaws2-Educ Center Rev. 4.06.doc 6 Rev. 4.19.06cg



Addendum A

Santa Fe Community College governing board approved the New Mexico
Education Services Center bylaws on Juije 22, 2006.
]

Q

June. 29, 2006

am

Date



Fe 6401 Richards Avenue
Santa Santa Fe, NM 87508-4887

Community Phone (505) 428-1201
College Fax (505) 428-1296

Office of the President

June 29, 2006

Dr. Steve McCleery, President
New Mexico Junior College
6317 Lovington Highway
Hobbs, NM 88240

RE: NMESC Bylaws

Dear Steve,

Enclosed are three sets of New Mexico Education Services Center bylaws
that I have signed. The Santa Fe Community College governing board also
approved them on June 22, 2006. When your governing board has
approved them (please add a second addendum to indicate NMJC approval
and the date of this action) would you sign off on all three sets. Please
forward the 3 signed copies {(now with 2 addendums) to Jose Griego at
NNMC for his governing board approval and the addition of his signature.

Would you indicate to Jose that after his governing board has acted, to add a
third addendum, and to return a fully executed copy (plus three addendums)
to you and to me.

Thanksg for your help in moving this along.

James N. McLaughlin
President

Xc:  Sheila Ortego, Executive Vice President

Enclosures

“Helping students succeed. Serving our community.” www.sfcenm.edu



NEW MEXICO JUNIOR COLLEGE

Office of the President

Memo
TO: New Mexico Junior College Board
FRO: Steve McCleery &~
DATE:  August 10, 2006
RE: Institutional Information Technology Plan

Enclosed is a copy of the Institutional Information Technology Plan (IT Plan) which
must be submitted to the Higher Education Department. It is my recommendation that
you approve the Institutional IT Plan.

Thank you for your consideration!

5317 LOVINGTON HIGHWAY « HOBBS, NEW MEXICO 88240 « (505) 392-5018 = fax 392-2526



NEW MEXICO JUNIOR COLLEGE

Oftfice of the President

Memo

TO: New Mexico Junior College Board
FRO: Steve McCleery S
DATE:  August 10, 2006

RE: Campus Village Project

Affordable housing for New Mexico Junior College staff is of paramount importance,
and new hires are experiencing extreme difficulty in finding housing. In some cases,
we are losing candidates because of the housing market. The housing issue is an
important issue in the recruiting and retention of staff, and may be the number one
concern among the administration. You approved $15,000 to participate in a
Workforce Campus Village Housing Study. To date, we have spent $10,750. To
move the study and the project forward, we need to commit an additional $12,500,
from reserves, to the project. If the project proceeds to construction, we will get the

money back. If the construction phase does not become a reality, we will forfeit the
funding.

Considering the severity of affordable housing issue for our faculty and staff, I urge
you to approve the recommendation to spend an additional $12,500 from Institutional

Reserves for this project.

Thank you for your consideration!

5317 LOVINGTON HIGHWAY « HOBBS, NEW MEXICO 88240 = (505) 392-5018 » fax 392-2526



NEW MEXICO JUNIOR COLLEGE

Vice President for Instruction

TO: Dr. McCleery, Board of Trustees

FROM: John Gratton

SUBJECT: Faculty Use of Personal/Sick Leave during the Summer
DATE: August 10, 2006

The NMIC faculty is granted four days of personal leave per year and nine sick days per
year. Unused personal leave is erased from each faculty member at the end of the spring
semester, while sick leave can be accumulated up to a maximum of 960 hours. However,
faculty teaching in either or both summer semesters currently is prevented from applying
accumulated sick leave or personal leave during the summer contract. With this policy, it
frequently necessitates a deduction in salary for faculty if they miss a day during the
summer semester for sick or personal reasons.

A possibility to alleviate this matter would be to allow faculty to carry over unused
personal leave until the end of the second summer semester. The amended policy could
allow a faculty member to use one day of unused personal leave per summer semester.
The maximum personal leave per year would still remain at four days but if the faculty
taught one summer semester then they could use one unused day of personal leave and if
they taught both summer semesters then they could use two days of unused personal
leave. If days are missed for personal reasons and the faculty member had used all four
days of personal leave for that year, then a deduction would be made from their salary. At
the end of the second summer session, all personal leave would be erased for all faculty
members.

In a similar vein, our sick leave policy could be amended to allow one day of
accumulated sick leave to be used each summer semester that the faculty member taught.
The sick leave would have to come from the accumulated sick leave and the maximum
sick leave allowed would be one day per semester.

Thank you for your consideration!

John LW&M
%ﬁﬂ"‘*’ g_,//.. o6

5317 Lovington Highway = Hobbs, New Mexico 88240 * (505) 392-5037 « FAX (505) 392-2526



NEW MEXICO JUNIOR COLLEGE
Personnel Recommendation for Board Consideration

The following candidate is being recommended for employment as follows: Date  8/10/2006

Candidate’s name  Donald B. Hancock

Position title CDL Trainer

><New position [] Existing position Classification PFaculty [ ] Professional [_] Other

Is candidate related to another NMJC employee? Kyes [Ino If so, to whom  Beth Hancock, Business Office

Effective date of employment * 8/28/2006 Standard contract length [X]12mos. []9mos. [J] other

Funding source Truck Driving Training Department

Paid advertising beyond *standard _ none
{*Standard: The Hobbs News-Sun, Direct Matl io approximately 51 colleges in n 5-state region, NM Dept. of Labor)

Posted salary range 12 month faculty schedule Recommended annual salary $43,000.00 Prorated salary [Xyes [Jno

Account number(s) with respective % allocation(s) 11000 2909 61301 104 — 100%

Recommended and approved by:

Supervisor Dean/Director
e I
Vice President President 0

Selection Committee Members:  Charlie Carroll, Director of Physical Plant

Randy Cook, Transportation Director

Lisa Hardison, Dean of Extended Learning

Bill Rash, Plant Warehouseman, Motor Pool

Robert Rhodes, Vice President of Training and Outreach

Comments: Mr. Hancock, with a State of New Mexico CDL Examiner Certification and more than twenty-nine years of applicable

experience, meets and/or exceeds the minimum requirements for this position.

* Pending background check.

rev. 6-28-01



ABBREVIATED RESUME

Position

CDL Trainer

Personal Data

Name: Donald B. Hancock

Professional Experience

New Mexico Junior College, Hobbs, NM
Part-time CDL Examiner

EXCEL Driver Services, Wheatridge CO
Lead Driver Trainer

Safety & Environmental Solutions, Hobbs, NM

Driver Trainer

M&M Tours, Hobbs, NM
Charter Bus Driver

Fortune Transportation, Windom, MN

Manager Transportation (Dairy Farmers of America)

Mr. Don’s Bar-B-Que
Owner

Roadrunner Hotshot
Owner/Driver

Forklift Enterprises
Truck Driver/Sales/Dispatch

Certifications:

12/2001 to Present

04/2006 to Present

08/2005 to 04/2006

10/2002 to 08/2005

07/1998 to 11/2001

06/1997 to 06/1998

1992 to 1997

1990 to 1992

State of New Mexico Certified CDL Examiner, CD #402, 11/2001

EMT, Odessa Junior College, 1979

Flight Instructor, Marshall Aviation, Hobbs, NM 1970

Organizations:

Boy Scout of America — District Chairman
Denver City, Texas — Councilman
Flying Ambassadors — Pilot Volunteer



lew ilexieo Junior Bollsye
Paresy Opporiu

Position Announcement -July 20086 (Revised)
Position Title: CDL Trainer

Position Deseription: This position reports to the Coordinator of Transportation Training. Duties and responsibilities
shall be, but are not limited to, the following; (1) Assist the Coordinator of Transportation Training in the development,
planning, and promotion of CDL programs; (2} Assist with curriculum development for CDL training programs;
(3) Instruct the classroom and driving portions of the CDL Truck Driving Academy; (4) Develop and locate
appropriate instructional resources such as textbooks, PowerPoint presentations, and videos/DVDs; (5) Organize
instructional materials, classroom, and lab setting to meet industry standards; (6) Assess student learning; (7)
Maintain student records; (8) Conduct routine maintenance and service of equipment; (9) Manage inventory
associated with the CDL Truck Driving Academy; (10) Actively seek opportunities to partner with entities to
promote enrollment in CDL training programs; (11) Maintain safe storage of equipment designated for CDL
programs; (12) Attend professional training as directed by the Coordinator of Transportation Training or the
Dean; (13)Perform any other duties assigned by the Dean to further the mission of the Extended Leamning Division
and New Mexico Junior College; (14) Participate in a process of continual personal and professional improvement;
(15) Actively participate in the institutional goals and objectives designed to support the mission of the college;
(16) Serve on college committees as assigned; and, (17) Nothing contained herein shall limit the President in
assigning the employee to any of the various college activities for which he/she would be qualified, in order to meet
the needs of New Mexico Junior college.

Qualifications: High school diploma or GED required, associates degree preferred. Preference will be given to
candidates with 5 or more years of CDL driving experience. Current Class A CDL License is required. Must have
excellent computer, communication, problem solving, and organizational skills. CDL training experience is preferred.
Some travel may be required. Must be committed to excellence and promoting success through learning. NOTE:

Computer proficiency is required

Salary/Benefils: This is atwelve-month faculty position. Salary range is based on NMJC 12-month faculty
schedule and is commensurate with education and experience. Note: New Mexico Junior College does not
participate in social security deductions.

|Anplication Deadline: Open until filled. To ensure consideration, all application materials must be received as
soon as possible. Application materiais sent via e-mail will not be accepted.

ToRpPlY: Submit NMIC application form, letter of application (cover letter), resume, unofficial transcripts and/or
certifications, and three or more letters of reference to:

Human Resources
New Mexico Junior College
5317 Lovington Highway
Hobbs, NM 88240

New Mexico Junior College is an Equal Opportunity, Affirmative Action Employer and does not discriminate against any applicant for
employment because of race, color, religion, sex, sexual orientation, national origin, age, disability, or veteran status. Qualified applicants
are encouraged to apply.

"Equal Opportunity Education and Employment™
5317 Lovington Highway, Hobbs, NM, 88240 +» Phone: (505) 392-5229 + Fax: (505) 392-3589 « Toll Free: 1-800-657-6260 « E-mai:l: mehemandez@nmjc.edu




APPLICANT LIST

Position: CDL Trainer

Applicant Interview Offer Remarks
Hancock, Donald B. Yes Yes Start date: Pending Board approval.

Page 1



NEW MEXICO JUNIOR COLLEGE

Office of the President

Memo
DATE: August 11, 2006
TO: New Mexico Junior College Board Members
FROM: Steve McCleery Sv

SUBJECT:  John Gratton - Surgery

John Gratton was air lifted to Lubbock on Tuesday, August 11, 2006. He has two blood
clots and bleeding within the brain. The physicians think the symptoms are a result of his
recent bicycle accident. He is scheduled for surgery on Monday, August 14. He is in
severe pain, nauseated, and upset that the doctors postponed his surgery. His spirits are
good, and he is anxious for the doctors to operate so he can come home. I will keep you
abreast of his situation.

Thank you.

5317 LOVINGTON HIGHWAY *HOBBS, NEW MEXICO 88240+(505) 392-5018 ofax 392-2528



NEW MEXICO JUNIOR COLLEGE

Personnel Recommendation for Board Consideration

The following candidate is being recommended for employment as follows: Date  8/10/2006

Candidate’s name  Connie J. Gray

Position title  Financial Coordinator for Training and Outreach

(X New position [_] Existing position Classification [ ] Faculty [X] Professional [] Other

Is candidate related to another NMJC employee? [ 1yes no If s0, to whom

Effective date of employment * 9/1/2006 Standard contract length  [X] 12 mos. [J9mos. [ other

Funding source: Institutional Funds

Paid advertising beyond *standard  none

{*Standard: The Hobls News-Sun, Direct Mail 10 approsimately 51 colleges in a 5-state region, NM Dept. of Labor, NMJC Website)

Posted salary range $27,807- $34,758 Recommended annual salary  $34,209.00 Prorated salary [Xyes [Jno

Account number(s) with respective % allocation(s) 11000291061301 115 - 100%

Recommended and approved by:

Supervisor Dean/Diregtor
; <

Vice President President {:)(

Selection Committee Members:  Christie Gressett, Admin. Secretary — Extended Learning

Beth Hancock, Executive Secretary — Vice President of Finance

Lisa Hardison, Dean of Extended Learning

Jo Hayes, Director of Training Programs

Michae] Rutledge, Technical Coordinator of DL

Robert Rhodes, VP of Training and Cutreach

Comments: Ms. Gray, with an A.A. in accounting with more than sixteen years of applicable experience, meets and/or exceeds the

minimum requirements for this position.

*Pending background check

Tev. G-25-01



ABBREVIATED RESUME

Position

Financial Coordinator for Training and Qutreach

Personal Data

Name: Connie J. Gray
Education
A.A., Accounting, New Mexico Junior College, Hobbs, NM, 1992

Professional Experience

College of the Southwest, Hobbs, NM

Director of Personnel Services

Executive Assistant to Vice President for Administrative Services/CFO
Accounts Payable Clerk

Lucky Services, Hobbs, NM
Controller

Economic Development, Hobbs, NM
Administrative Assistant

Hospice Services, Hobbs, NM
Controller/Office Manager

Northside Baptist Church, Hobbs, NM
Secretary/Bookkeeper

New York Life Insurance Company, Hobbs, NM
Part-time Secretary

H&R Block, Hobbs, NM
Part-time Tax Preparer

Honors:

New Mexico Junior College Honors Graduate, 1992

3/2001 to Present

6/2000 to 3/2001

3/1998 to 6/2000

9/1997 to 3/1998

10/1996 to 9/1997

1/1993 to 5/1996

1987 to 1989

1986 to 1987

1984 to 1987



iew lexico Junioy Gollege
Career Opportunities

Position Announcement July 2006

Position Title: Financial Coordinator of Training and Qutreach Programs

Position Deseription: This position reports to the Dean of Extended Learning. Duties and responsibilities shall
be. but are not limited to, the following: (1) Develop and maintain a tracking system for both credit and non-credit
enrollments in Outreach and Training Programs; 2) Function as the office manager for the Outreach and Training
Vice-President and staff; 3) Maintain all budgets associated with Training and Outreach Programs; 4) Develop
and maintain systems for accounts payable, accounts receivable, and invoicing; 5) Assist the Dean and Vice-
President in analyzing data to provide direction to training and outreach programs; 6) Provide customer assistance
and create a friendly environment for current and potential clients; 7) Provide project management support to the
Training and Outreach staff; 8) Work with college administrative software system and serve as a liaison to the
NMIC Business Office; 9) Attend professional training as directed by the Dean; 10) Any other duties assigned by
the Dean to further the mission of the Distance Learning Department and New Mexico Junior College; (11)
Participate in a process of continual personal and professional improvement; (12) Actively participate in the
institutional goals and objectives designed to support the mission of the college; (13) Serve on college committees
as assigned; and, (14) Nothing contained herein shall limit the President in assigning the employee to any of the
various college activities for which he/she would be qualified, in order to meet the needs of New Mexico Junior
college.

Qualifications: Associate degree in Accounting/Business or related field required. Bachelor’s degree preferred.
Database management and accounting/bookkeeping skills are necessary. Experience in an educational setting
desired. Must be highly proficient in computer technologies and have excellent communication, problem solving,
and organizational skills. Must be deadline driven to be successful. Some travel may be required. Must be committed
to excellence and promoting success through learning. NOTE: Computer proficiency is required.

Salary/Benefits: This is a twelve-month position. Salary range is $27,807 to $34,758. The salary and benefits
are competitive and commensurate with experience and qualifications. Note: New Mexico Junior College does
not participate in social security deductions.

Application Deadline: Open until filled. To ensure consideration, all application materials must be received as
soon as possible. Application materials sent via e-mail will not be accepted.

ToApDlY: Submit NMJC application form, letter of application (cover letter), resume, unofficial transcripts, and
three or more letters of reference to:

Human Resources
New Mexico Junior College
5317 Lovington Highway
Hobbs, NM 88240

New Mexico Junior College is an Equal Opportunity, Affirmative Action Employer and does not discriminate against any applicant for
employment because of race, color, religion, sex, sexual orientation, national origin, age, disability, or veteran status. Qualified applicants are
cncouraged to apply

"Equal Oppontunity Education and Employment™
537 Lovinglon Highway, Hobbs, NM, 88240 « Phone. (505) 392-5229 » Fax: (505) 392-3589 - Toll Free 1-800-657-6260 » E-mail: mehemandez@nmjc. edu




APPLICANT LIST

Position: Financial Coordinator for Training and Outreach

Applicant Interview Offer Remarks

Harrison, Erica No No

Hanson, Connie L. Yes No

Gray, Connie J., Yes Yes Start date: Pending Board approval.
Morley, Donna S. No No

Page 1



NEW MEXICO JUNIOR COLLEGE
Personnel Recommendation for Board Consideration

The following candidate is being recommended for employment as follows: Date 8-2-06

Candidate’s name Paul J. Campos

Position title Assistant Director/Professor - Law Enforcement Academy/Public Safety

[J New position [X] Existing position Classification []Faculty [X] Professional [[] Other

Is candidate related to another NMJC employee? Lyes [Elno If so, to whom

Effective date of employment 11-1-06 Standard contract length K] 12mos. []9mos. [ other

Funding source Institutional Funds

Paid advertising beyond *standard None

(“Standard: The Hobbs News-Sun, Direct Mail 10 approximanely 51 colleges in » 5-state region, NM Dept. of Labor, NMJC Website

Posted salary range _$36,485 - $45, 606 Recommended annual salary $45,396 Prorated salary [K]yes [Jno

Account number(s) with respective % allocation(s) 11000 2045 61301 102 100%

Recommended and approved by:

(e
Supervisor Dean/Dirgctor el
Ddé& Jr 9&/&//7'
[)

Vice President President

Selection Committee Members: — Dean of Public Safet

Naomi Phillips — Asst, Director Corrections Academy

Rebecca Titus - Divisional Academic Coord./Prof. for Public Safety

Comments: Mr, Campos meets and/or exceeds the minimum requirements for this position.

Fev. B-28-01



ABBREVIATED RESUME

Position
Assistant Director/Professor — Law Enforcement/Public Safety

Personal Data

Name: Paul J. Campos

Education
High School Diploma, Lovington High School, Lovington, NM

Professional Experience

Lea County Sheriff's Department, Lovington, NM
Sergeant — Patrol Division

Lovington Police Department, Lovington, NM
Patrolman

Hobbs Police Department, Hobbs, NM
Sergeant — Patrol Division

American National Insurance
Insurance Agent

Albertson’s Food Center
Front End Manager

Advanced Specialized Training and Awards

NM Police Officer Law Enforcement Academy — Police Officer Certification

2/00 to Present

7/99 to 2/00

1/86 to 5/99

6/05 to 6/06

7/84 to 6/85

NM Department of Public Safety Training and Recruiting Division — First Line Supervision

Federal Bureau of Investigation Law Enforcement Training School

Caliber Press Inc. — Street Survival Seminar

US Department of Energy Central Training Academy — Instructor Certification Program

Life Saving Commendation — Hobbs Police Department

Honor Guard Appointments: Hobbs Police Department, Lea County Sheriff’s Department

SWAT Team Leader Appointment; Lea County Sheriff’s Department

Professional Organizations

Option, Inc., Former Member
Fraternal Order of Police, Former Member
Juvenile Community Corrections, Board Member



APPLICANT LIST

Position: Assistant Director/Professor — Law Enforcement Academy/Public Safety

Applicant Interview Offer Remarks
Campos, Paul J. Yes Yes Start date: Pending Board approval.

Page 1



NEW MEXICO JUNIOR COLLEGE

Dean of Public Safety and Community Services

July 27, 2006

MEMORANDUM

TO:  Dr. John Gratton — Vice President for Instruction ¢ 3 Sd
FR: Dr. August m, Division of Public Safety

RE: Position: Assistant Director — Law Enforcement Training
Dr. Gratton:

On July 26, 2006 I received a completed applicant package from Mr. Paul Campos for
the vacant position of Assistant Director - Law Enforcement Training. This package has
been turned into Human Resources. On July 27, 2006 an interview was conducted with
Mr. Campos. The selection committee was comprised of myself, Ms. Rebecca Titus and
Ms. Naomi Phillips. It was the consensus of the committee that Mr. Campos be
recommended to fill the position.

This is a somewhat unusual situation in that Mr. Campos is currently working as a
Sergeant with the Lea County Sheriff’s Department and will not be available for full-time
employment until November 1, 2006. The need for me to fill this position is critical and
to that end, I have spoken with the Lea County Sheriff regarding an alternate
arrangement. Sheriff Rice has arranged a work schedule for Sgt. Campos that will enable
him to work here with the academy four days a week (Monday through Thursday) and
Friday afternoons.

Mr. Campos is currently employed as an adjunct instructor for the academy and I am
submitting the following proposal for consideration:

(1) Retain Mr. Campos as a part-time employee and pay him $10.00 per hour through
October 31, 2006. I am recommending that these wages be paid from the assigned
salary for the currently vacant position.

(2) Submit a hiring recommendation to the NMJC board at the next board meeting.
This recommendation will be to hire Mr. Campos as a full-time employee as the
Assistant Director-Law Enforcement Training effective November 1, 2006.

If this proposal/hiring recommendation is approved, there will be little, if any, transition

from the part-time position to full-time. Additionally, I will immediately have needed
assistance in conducting the day-to-day operation of the academy including the absolute

5317 Lovington Highway * Hobbs, New Mexico 88240 « (505) 392-1771 « www.nmjc.edu



need for multiple physical fitness and defensive tactics instructors for daily blocks of
instruction.

I have forwarded all required documentation (Applicant package, record of interviews,
and reference checks) to Human Resources.

Pending your approval, I would like to have Mr. Campos initially begin his part-time role
as Assistant Director for Law Enforcement Training Monday, July 31, 2006.

Thank you for your consideration. Please contact me if I can answer any questions and/or
provide any further needed information.



Memorandum

To: Dr. McCleery

From: Charley Carroll

Date: August 4, 2006

Re: Request Board Approval for Employment of Relative: Groundskeeper 111

After reviewing applications for the Groundskeeper III position, I would like to
recommend Mr. Wiley G. Owens for the vacancy. Per the 2006-2007 NMJC Employee
Handbook, (Policy No. 203 — Employment of Relatives), I am requesting approval from
the Board because Mr. Owens is related to Amanda Owens — Groundskeeper II.

Pending Board approval, I would like for Mr. Owens to start full time employment on
August 18, 2006.

Thank you for your consideration.

Charley Carroll
Director of Physical Plant



Memorandum

To: Dr. McCleery

From: Charley Carroll

Date: August 4, 2006

Re: Request Board Approval for Employment of Relative: Groundskeeper I

After reviewing applications for the Groundskeeper I position, 1 would like to
recommend Ms. Rosianna Hare for the vacancy. Per the 2006-2007 NMJC Employee
Handbook, (Policy No. 203 — Employment of Relatives), | am requesting approval from
the Board because Ms. Hare is related to Lynn Anglin - General
Maintenance/Mechanical Systems.

Pending Board approval, 1 would like for Ms. Hare to start full time employment on
August 18, 2006.

Thank you for your consideration.

Charley Carroll
Director of Physical Plant



